
PO Box 388 / 388 Blohm Avenue 
Aromas, CA 95004 
Phone: (831) 726-3155  FAX: (831) 726-3951 
www.aromaswaterdistrict.org 

Next Res. # 2022-04 

All public records relating to an agenda item on this agenda are available for public inspection at the time the record is distributed 
to all, or a majority of the board.  Such records shall be available at the District office located at 388 Blohm Avenue, Aromas, CA. 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA 
TUESDAY, February 22, 2022, 7:00 PM 

Notice of HYBRID Meeting  
The Aromas Water District Board of Directors meeting will be conducted in a hybrid setting.  Directors, staff and public may attend the 

meeting remotely or in person. Public participation is encouraged – participation instructions are on the following page. 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
II. ROLL CALL OF DIRECTORS: President Jim Leap, Vice President Vicki Morris, Directors, Marcus 

Dutra, Richard Smith, and Wayne Holman. 
III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
IV. STATEMENTS OF DISQUALIFICATION 
V. ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS 
VI. MINUTES: Review the Minutes of the January 25, 2022, Regular Board Meeting for Board approval. 
VII. ORAL COMMUNICATION: Anyone wishing to address the Board on informational items, staff reports 

or matters not listed on the agenda may do so.  Please limit your comment to three (3) minutes. The public 
may comment on listed Action and Public Hearing items at the time they are considered by the Board. 

VIII. PRESENTATIONS & REPORTS 
A. DIRECTORS' REPORTS 
B. ATTORNEY'S REPORT 
C. MANAGER'S REPORT 
D. CORRESPONDENCE 

IX. CONSENT CALENDAR: 
A. Consider adoption of Resolution #2022-02, extending the need for hybrid meetings, as 

presented in AB 361. 
X. ACTION ITEMS: 

A. Consider reviewing the Board Policy Manual 2020, and providing direction to staff 
Staff will present the Board Policy Manual, for discussion and Board action (Board Policy Manual 
2020 attached). 

B. Consider receiving a progress report on the Marshall Well project, and providing direction to staff 
Staff will present a progress report on the Marshall Well project, for discussion and Board action. 

C. Consider adopting a resolution (Resolution #2022-03) certifying a Categorical Exemption for 
the annexation of 27 Cole Road parcels and six Rocks Road parcels into the Aromas Water 
District boundary, and providing direction to staff. 
Staff will present a report on the Cole Road/Rocks Road annexation environmental documentation 
for discussion and Board action. 

D. Financial Reports for the Month of January 2022 
Including both Assessment Districts, the financial reports show a Total revenue of $84,190.37; Total 
expenditures were $104,326.62 between January 19, 2022, and February 16, 2022. These financials 
and monthly expenditures will be presented for discussion and approval. 

E. Adjourn to Closed Session 
Closed Session pursuant to California Government Code Section § 54956.8 

To discuss potential real property acquisition of Monterey County APN: 267-102-003-000 
Proposed Negotiator(s): Robert Johnson, GM and Wayne Holman, Board member 

F. Return to Open Session 
Statement of any action from Closed Session 

XI. FUTURE MEETINGS & AGENDA ITEMS – Next meeting – March 22, 2022 
XII. ADJOURNMENT 

President- James Leap 
Vice President- Vicki Morris 
Director- Marcus Dutra 
Director- Richard Smith 
Director- Wayne Holman  
General Manager- Robert Johnson 
Board Secretary- Louise Coombes 

p.6-9 

p.10 

p.3-5 

p.13-49 

p.51-54 

p.55-60 

p.11-12 

p.50 



PO Box 388 / 388 Blohm Avenue 
Aromas, CA 95004 
Phone: (831) 726-3155  FAX: (831) 726-3951 
www.aromaswaterdistrict.org 

 

Hybrid Meeting Attendance Instructions 

The public may participate in the District’s Board meeting either in person, or by teleconference / web 
conference via the instructions provided below.  In person attendees will be subject to mask and distancing 
protocols. 

The meeting materials will be available for download from the District’s website at: 

www.aromaswaterdistrict.org 

For those who choose to attend this meeting via Zoom will be muted by default. To join the meeting from a 
computer, tablet, or smartphone via the Zoom app (free at http://www.zoom.us), click the link on the meeting 

date and time: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83994287844 

If you do not have speakers or a microphone on your computer, you can dial in for audio. 

Call (669) 900.9128 and enter the Webinar ID: 83994287844 

If you would like to speak during the public comment portion of the meeting, you have the following options: 

1. Online – raise your hand or use the Q&A panel to submit written comments. 

2. Phone – press *9 to raise your hand, *6 to send a request to be unmuted to submit verbal comments. 

The meeting officially will start at 7:00pm, though remote access will be open 
15 minutes before the start of the meeting. 

Public engagement is important to the District, and hybrid meeting protocols are an evolving process. 
We appreciate everyone’s understanding as we work through this together 

 

2



SECOND DRAFT 1 / 3 

Minutes of the Regular Meeting of 
the Aromas Water District Board of Directors 

January 25, 2022 
I. CALL TO ORDER. The regular meeting of the Aromas Water District Board of Directors was called to

order by President Leap on Tuesday, January 25, 2022, at 7:00 p.m. in a hybrid setting; attendees were
both present in the Board Room and online via Zoom.

II ROLL CALL. President Leap, Vice President Morris and Directors Dutra, Holman and Smith were
present. Also present was General Manager Johnson; Board Secretary Coombes and Counsel Bosso
attended via Zoom.

III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE. President Leap led the pledge of allegiance.

IV. STATEMENTS OF DISQUALIFICATION. There were no disqualification statements.

V. ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS. There were no additions to, or deletions from, the Agenda.

VI. MINUTES. The minutes of the December 21, 2021, Board Meeting were presented for review and
approval. Director Dutra moved for approval of the minutes as presented; Director Smith seconded.
Minutes were unanimously approved with all Directors present.

VII. ORAL COMMUNICATION. There were no public comments.

VIII. REPORTS/PRESENTATIONS

A. Director's Report(s). There were no Director’s reports.

B. Attorney's Report. Counsel Bosso recommends watching the progress of a new Proposition being added
to the next ballot which may make financial decisions at the District more difficult, mandating a 2/3
majority, with everything proposed being “reasonable” and directly related to customer charges.

C. Manager’s Report

OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE

Production & Well Levels
GM Johnson reported total production in December 2021 was 5,248,230 gallons, with a daily average of
169,298 gallons. Carpenteria Well ran the entire month; San Juan Well was used for thirty days of the month
but Pleasant Acres was not used.

There were no new meters installed, so the current total is 969 connected meters. All water testing continues
to be both filed on time and represent satisfactory results.

Reporting on well levels; Carpenteria Well is up four feet, San Juan Well is up three feet. Observational
wells; Marshall Well is up five feet and Aimee Meadows is up three feet.

INCIDENTS
During the recent heavy rain, a small portion of our main line on the way to Oakridge was exposed at a
driveway entrance, however, no damage was observed; the area has now been completely repaired.

ADMINISTRATIVE

Staff & Board Recognition
WUSp Girõn continues to work with the Operations team to utilize tablets for routine recordkeeping to
increase efficiency.

ASO Coombes has issued annual reporting paperwork to all staff and Directors.

CO DeAlba returned to work a little ahead of schedule, commencing January 10, 2022.

Operator Smith continues to work with our electricians and XiO on issues with Ballantree communications
to include the filter plant and San Juan Well. One of the aims is to be able to remotely run the backwash.

The Ad-Hoc Infrastructure and Finance Committee met in December to review contractor proposals and
develop financial solutions. Three municipal financing firms were recommended by the Bond Attorney.

3



 SECOND DRAFT 2 / 3 

Conservation & Rainfall 
Since the start of the rainfall year on October 1, 2021, at total of 14.48 inches of precipitation have been 
recorded by the rain gauge at Chittenden pass, with only 0.08 inches falling in January 2022.  

PROJECTS 

Response to COVID-19 virus 
Monitoring of the current situation continues. Customers continue to use the drop-box to make payments 
despite the office being open. 

Orchard Hill Road proposed annexation progress 
The previous main contact person is stepping down and another resident will be taking their place. There 
is still interest in receiving District water; GM Johnson will reach out to them again in February 2022. 

Cole Road & Rocks Road Project 
GM Johnson presented the annexations of Cole Road and Rocks Road, first to an Ad-Hoc Committee at 
PVWMA and then at the PVWMA January Board of Directors meeting. The fact that a number of parcels 
were included was well received and the request was approved. The agreements will need to be signed by 
the District’s counsel and GM of PVWMA prior to presenting an application to San Benito LAFCo. 

New Water Source 
GM Johnson elaborated on this project with an update in Action Item X.A later in this meeting. 

Correspondence: GM Johnson pointed out the email from the Bond Attorney with the three names for a 
Municipal Finance Advisors and their responses. CSDA have also offered low interest financing for which 
GM Johnson has also applied. Director Dutra enquired about the email from L Austin; GM Johnson indicated 
that this email was to ensure we knew of financing opportunities for Water Agencies in the Governor’s 
Budget Proposal. 

IX. CONSENT CALENDAR 
A. Consider adopting Resolution 2022-01 authorizing the continuation of hybrid/remote 

teleconferencing meetings pursuant to AB 361 
Vice President Morris moved to adopt Resolution 2022-01 as presented; seconded by Director Smith. The 
Resolution was unanimously adopted, by roll-call vote, with all Directors present. 

X ACTION ITEMS 

A. Consider receiving a progress report on the Marshall Well project 
The two proposals previously presented total $525,087 and research is underway to seek grants as well as 
financing options. Of the three Municipal Advisors provided by the Bond Attorney, two have provided 
submittals and one excluded themselves due to current commitments. The submittals need review and 
discussion resulted in agreement for the Infrastructure and Financing Committee to perform this review, 
select and engage the consultant. The plan is to implement a funding solution in May 2022. 

Director Holman moved to receive the audited financial statements as presented; seconded by Director 
Dutra. The audited financial statements were unanimously adopted, with all Directors present. 

B. Consider adopting the Aromas Water District COVID-19 Prevention Plan (CPP) 
The CPP will help staff to identify, evaluate and correct COVID-19 hazards, including steps to take should 
a case occur at a District facility. The plan also incorporates current CDC guidelines for getting tested and 
returning to work after a suitable quarantine period, without loss of sick leave bank. This only applies to 
exposure due to a work-related situation. 

Vice President Morris asked if the plan covers non-vaccinated staff; GM Johnson responded that any non-
vaccinated staff will be required to take a PCR test on a weekly basis. In addition, there are some rapid 
tests available at the office for District staff. 

  

4



SECOND DRAFT 3 / 3 

Director Smith moved to adopt the Aromas Water District COVID-19 Prevention Plan; seconded by Vice 
President Morris. To move forward with this project as presented was unanimously adopted with all 
Directors present. 

C. Financial Reports for the Month of December 2021
Total Assets / Liabilities & Equity are $10,975,746.08, of which Total Current Assets are $4,946,130.54,
and Total Fixed Assets are $5,880,495.54. In Liabilities, the Total Current Liabilities are $223,855.83 and
Total Liabilities are $4,385,454.51.

In the P&L Report, Water Revenue for December was $81,483.85. Total Expenditures were $91,837.47
between December 15 to January 18, 2022.

On the graphical representation of the Financials, when compared to the current budget there is a +5.6%
difference for YTD Revenue and -3.1% difference for YTD Expenditures.

X. FUTURE MEETINGS & AGENDA ITEMS. The next meeting date will be on Tuesday, February 22,
2022, and will be the same hybrid format as this meeting. Topics will include a review of the Directors
Handbook.

XI. ADJOURNMENT. President Leap adjourned the meeting at 8:00pm until Tuesday, February 22, 2022.

Read and approved by:  ______________________________ Attest: _____________________________  
President, Jim Leap Board Secretary, Louise Coombes 

Date: ________________________ Date: ________________________ 

5



 

 

AWD – GM Report: January 2022 

 
 
 

PRODUCTION REPORT 
    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Totals 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 

Million Gal 106.15 110.17 123.42 105.97 91.27 88.152 95.304 102.07 98.141 107.1 102.07 5.07 

Acre Ft 325.7 338.05 378.7 325.16 280.05 270.49 292.43 313.18 301.13 328.8 313.19 15.56 

www.aromaswaterdistrict.org 

General Manager’s Report 
January 2022 

6



 

 

AWD – GM Report: January 2022 

OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE REPORT 
 
OPERATIONS: 

 There are 970 total meters installed; a new connection was established at 681 Cole Road.  
 Both Carpenteria and San Juan wells were operated the entire month, while Pleasant Acres well 

was not used this month.  
 Water Treatment Plant: finished water was free of both iron and manganese this month. 
 Distribution testing for total Coliform; all samples were negative. 
 All monthly DWR reports on Coliform, and Fe / Mn were filed on time. 
 WTP filters are being backwashed when necessary.  
 Monthly Generator in-house 15-minute testing under load. 
 Monthly well-level monitoring (see chart following this report in Board Packet). 
  

MAINTENANCE: 
 Preventative maintenance and flushing were performed, as needed. 
 Chlorine chemical pump maintenance and analyzer maintenance at all wells was performed. 
 Additional maintenance tasks are being performed as time allows. 

 

INCIDENTS: 
 None at the time of this writing. 

 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 
 

STAFF & BOARD RECOGNITION:  

 WUSp Girõn is working with Operator Smith to integrate tablets for routine daily recordkeeping.  
This effort, when fully implemented, will increase efficiency within the Operations section. 

 ASO Coombes and WUSp Girõn completed all the necessary Cole Road/Rocks Road Annexation 
Categorical Exemption paperwork (Action item at this meeting). They did a great job getting 
everything finished in a timely manner. 

 CO DeAlba has returned to work and has hit the ground running catching up on tasks that were 
put on hold during his absence.   

 Operator Smith and GM Johnson are working with Agee Electricians and XiO to resurrect the 
Ballantree communication system.  The District has been using a loaner system from Agee for 
about five months since the system failed. 

 Operator Smith and GM Johnson are working with TH Electric and XiO to develop a solution to 
performing a backwash at the water treatment plant.  This a specialized component of the XiO 
System that, when incorporated into the entire system, will be the completion of the XiO System 
installation.  Future XiO work will be on an as needed basis – remember, this entire XiO effort 
(multiple phases) was to replace the District’s failing SCADA System.  

 The Ad Hoc Infrastructure and Financing Committee met in January to review the financial advisor 
proposals.  The committee made a unanimous selection, and the selected firm has been notified. 

 GM Johnson worked with Quinn in Salinas to purchase a used Kubota vehicle. 

 GM Johnson worked with the Allterra Solar representative to prepare for the solar power and 
battery backup system installation. 

7



 

 

AWD – GM Report: January 2022 

CONSERVATION UPDATE: 
January 2022 usage figures are showing a continued reduction in consumption, as is expected 
this time of year. 
 
October 1, 2021 marked the start of a new water year. As of the date of this report (February 
16), the rain gauge at Chittenden Pass has recorded 14.48 inches of precipitation, with 0.00 
inches falling this month. That is roughly a 53% increase (to date) over the precipitation 
received last year (9.48 inches). 
 

PROJECTS:  
 

1. Response to COVID-19 virus 
Staff has been staying current on the ever-changing COVID-19 situation.  The office has been 
reopened, and customers have adjusted to the changes.  Staff is implementing the changes 
presented at the January Board of Directors’ meeting.  
 

2. Technology upgrade – SCADA (delayed due to COVID-19 pandemic) 
Major component installations are complete – respective staff members are working to complete 
final “punch list-type items”.   

 
3. Orchard Hill Road proposed annexation progress 

MNS Engineers completed the FINAL Technical Memorandum (TM), and it was released to 
the main spokespeople of the group. Staff recently met with the original point person, and the 
new point person on this project; he will be the new spokesperson.  Some questions were raised 
that staff and consultants will be working through in the near future. 
 

4. Progress on the Cole Road Outreach / Annexation Project 
The PVWMA BOD approved the annexation effort, and staff has initiated the work on the 
LAFCo Application. An Action item related to this project is on this meeting’s agenda.   
 

5. Progress on Finding a New Water Source Project 
Staff will be presenting an update on this project as part of the Action Items at tonight’s meeting. 

 
 
Robert Johnson 
General Manager 
February 16, 2022 

8



Ca
rp

en
te

ria
 W

el
l (

pr
od

uc
tio

n)
: P

re
vi

ou
s R

ea
d 

= 
26

8 
fe

et
; C

ur
re

nt
 R

ea
d 

= 
27

0 
fe

et
   

   
   

   
M

ar
sh

al
l W

el
l (

m
on

ito
rin

g)
: P

re
vi

ou
sR

ea
d 

= 
65

 fe
et

; C
ur

re
nt

 R
ea

d 
= 

66
 fe

et
 

Sa
n 

Ju
an

 W
el

l (
pr

od
uc

tio
n)

: P
re

vi
ou

s R
ea

d 
= 

11
2 

fe
et

; C
ur

re
nt

 R
ea

d 
= 

11
3 

fe
et

   
   

   
   

Ai
m

ee
 M

ea
do

w
s 

(m
on

ito
rin

g)
: P

re
vi

ou
sR

ea
d 

= 
19

8 
fe

et
; C

ur
re

nt
 R

ea
d 

= 
19

9 

W
el

l W
at

er
 L

ev
el

 M
on

ito
rin

g
De

pt
h 

to
 W

at
er

 M
ea

su
re

m
en

ts
Da

te
: F

eb
ru

ar
y 

11
, 2

02
2

25
0

26
0

27
0

28
0

29
0

30
0

Ca
rp

en
te

ria

40 50 60 70 80 90

M
ar

sh
al

l

10
0

11
0

12
0

13
0

14
0

15
0

Sa
n 

Ju
an

18
0

19
0

20
0

21
0

22
0

23
0

Ai
m

ee
 M

ea
do

w
s

Ch
ar

t d
at

a 
sy

nc
hr

on
iz

ed
 to

 s
am

e 
st

ar
t d

at
e 

- M
ar

ch
 2

01
2

9



CORRESPONDENCE LIST: 1/20/2022 – 2/16/2022 

DATE 

T
Y

P
E

 

TO FROM SUBJECT 

1/20/22 E R Johnson, AWD B Cheung, KNN Public 
Finance 

Proposal for Municipal Advisor Services 

1/20/22 E R Johnson, AWD C Hill, NHA Advisors Municipal Financial Advisor (NHA Advisors 
Proposal) 

1/20/22 E R Johnson, AWD R Porr, Fieldman Rolapp Response to Financial Advisory Services 
Request 

1/24/22 E J Quenemoen, Allterra Solar R Johnson, AWD Aromas Water District Solar Install? 

1/24/22 E R Johnson, AWD R Bennett, Orchard Hill Introduction [of new contact; Eric Lieu] 

[& Response] 

1/25/22 M R Johnson, AWD P Mitchell, Redistricting 
Partners 

Potential Scope of Services to Redistrict AWD 
for Elections 

1/26/22 M S Smith, AWD G Gonzalez, SWRCB, 
DDW 

Water Partnership and Regionalized 
Opportunities 

1/27/22 Q R Johnson, AWD S Shook, Quinn Cat 
Rental 

Sales Quote for Kubota Utility Vehicle 

1/27/22 E R Johnson, AWD P Mu, Oakridge Drive About Erosion [on Oakridge Drive] 

1/28/22 E AWD A Avery, CSDA HR Expert Feedback Team Request – COVID-19 
Supplemental Paid Sick Leave 

1/28/22 E S Shook, Quinn Cat Rental R Johnson, AWD Kubota UTV 

2/1/22 M R Johnson, AWD L Gill, SDRMA Renewal Questionnaire 

2/2/22 E A Arevelo, Ferguson 
Waterworks 

E Girõn, AWD Handheld [for Neptune Meters] 

2/3/22 E L Coombes, AWD SDRMA Memb Services Renewal Questionnaire Submittal Receipt 

2/3/22 E L Coombes, AWD State Controller’s Office 2021 Government Compensation Report Receipt

2/4/22 E [CC] R Johnson, AWD E Lieu, Orchard Hill Introduction [post meeting] 

2/6/22 E E Girõn, AWD Smartprocure Public Records Request for PO/Vendor Info. 

[& Response] 

2/10/22 E SWRCB E Girõn, AWD Monthly Fe & Mn Field Test Results 

2/10/22 E SWRCB E Girõn, AWD Monthly Summary of Coliform Monitoring 

2/14/22 E C Hill, NHA Advisors R Johnson, AWD Aromas Water District Proposal [Accept] 

2/14/22 E B Cheung, KNN Public 
Finance 

R Johnson, AWD Aromas Water District Proposal [Decline] 

2/16/22 M Kemper Insurance Claims 
Dept 

R Johnson, AWD Claim #21123894903 for the Aromas Water 
District – Fire Hydrant destroyed 

10



 
RESOLUTION 2022-02 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CONTINUATION OF 
HYBRID/REMOTE TELECONFERENCE MEETINGS 

PURSUANT TO AB 361 

WHEREAS, the Aromas Water District (District) Board of Directors (BOD) is committed 
to preserving public access and participation in BOD’s meetings; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Brown Act, Government Code section 54953(e), makes provisions for 
remote teleconferencing participation in meetings by members of a legislative body, 
without compliance with the requirements of Government Code section 54953(b)(3), 
subject to the existence of certain conditions; and 
 
WHEREAS, on March 4, 2020, Governor Newsom issued a Proclamation of State of 
Emergency in response to the COVID-19 pandemic; and 
 
WHEREAS, the proclaimed state of emergency remains in effect; and 

WHEREAS, on September 16, 2021, Governor Newsom signed AB 361 that provides that 
a legislative body subject to the Brown Act may continue to meet without fully complying 
with the teleconferencing rules in the Brown Act providing the legislative body determines 
that meeting in person would present imminent risks to the health and safety of attendees, 
and further requires that certain findings be made by the legislative body every thirty (30) 
days; and 
 
WHEREAS, in the interest of public health and safety, as affected by the emergency caused 
by the spread of COVID-19, the BOD deems it necessary to find a requirement to meet in 
person for meetings of the District could present imminent risks to the health and safety of 
attendees, and thus, intends to invoke the provisions of AB 361 related to teleconferencing; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the BOD has considered all information related to this matter, as presented at 
the public meetings of the BOD, including but not limited to the current circumstances 
related to the state of emergency, which continues to remain active; and 
 
WHEREAS, the BOD further finds that the state of emergency continues to directly impact 
the ability of the members to meet safely in person. 
 

(continued on next page)  

11



 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the Aromas Water District Board of 
Directors hereby resolves, and order as follows:  

1. The BOD finds that the facts set forth in the recitals to the Resolution are true 
and correct. 

2. The above findings and this resolution apply to all meeting of the Aromas 
Water District subject to the Brown Act for the period of February 27, 2022 
to March 26, 2022 (Resolution 2022-01 covers until February 26, 2022). 

3. As long as the State Emergency remains in effect or until directed otherwise 
by the BOD, staff shall present to the BOD at every meeting necessary, an item 
to continue the findings required by AB 361. 

4. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption and shall be 
effective until the earlier of thirty (30) days from adoption of the Resolution or 
such time the BOD adopts a subsequent Resolution in accordance with 
Government Code section 54953(e)(3) to extend the time during which the 
BOD may continue to teleconference without compliance with paragraph (3) 
of subdivision (b) of section 54953; and 

5. The General Manager and District Counsel are directed to take such other 
necessary actions to implement the intent and purposes of the Resolution. 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Aromas Water District, 
Aromas, Monterey and San Benito Counties, California, at a Regular meeting duly held on 
this 22nd day of FEBRUARY 2022 by the following vote: 

AYES:  

NOES:  

ABSTAIN: 

ABSENT:  

 

APPROVE:   
 
 
_______________________________ 
James Leap, Board President 

ATTEST:  
 
 
___________________________ 
Board Secretary, Louise Coombes 

 

12



Staff Report 
To: Board of Directors 

Re: Item X.A – Consider reviewing the Board Policy Manual 2020, and 
providing direction to Staff 

Date:  February 15, 2022 

Summary / Discussion 
At the October 2019 Board of Directors’ (BOD) meeting, an Ad-Hoc Committee was established to 
1) develop a BOD Handbook and 2) update the existing Employee Handbook.  These documents are
the foundation upon which to outline policies and procedures that are critical to the District’s success
by providing overall direction to keep the District on track.  At the time, only an Employee Handbook
existed.

When developing the current BOD Policy Manual, several example manuals and handbooks (including 
the sample manual from CSDA) were reviewed and integrated into the manual that was adopted at the 
January 2020 BOD meeting.  A copy of that document is attached to this report for your review.   

The manual is a living document and should be reviewed on a regular basis to keep it up to date and 
in line with the activities of the District.  Also, a recently-reviewed and approved BOD Policy Manual 
is one criteria for the District of Distinction accreditation that the District has been working towards 
achieving the last few months (since a majority of the work was already in place). 

Please review the manual to see if there are any changes or updates that may be needed.  It is expected 
that the BOD Policy Manual would be reviewed every two years. 

Staff Recommendation 
Receive the report, review the BOD Policy Manual 2020 and provide direction to staff, if any. 

Submitted by: 
Robert Johnson 
General Manager 

13



 
 

V7.0 Adopted by the AWD Board of Directors – January 28, 2020 

 

 

 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

POLICY MANUAL 

2020 
  

14



 
 

V7.0 Adopted by the AWD Board of Directors – January 28, 2020 

 

 

 

 

INTENTIONALLY BLANK 

 

15



BOARD OF DIRECTORS POLICY MANUAL 

V7.0 Adopted 01.28.2020 
 1  

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
Mission Statement and Objectives of the Aromas Water District ................................................................ 3 

10-00: The Board Of Directors; Powers, Duties And Functions .................................................................... 4 

20-00: Brown Act Compliance:  Open Meeting Requirements ..................................................................... 6 

30-00: Conflict of Interest ............................................................................................................................. 7 

40-00: Board Actions and Decisions ............................................................................................................. 9 

40-03: A Quorum ..................................................................................................................................................... 10  

40-04: Direction ....................................................................................................................................................... 11  

50-00: Types of Board Meetings ................................................................................................................. 12 

60-00: Board Meeting Agenda .................................................................................................................... 13 

60-01: Agenda preparation...................................................................................................................................... 13  

60-01: Agenda descriptions ..................................................................................................................................... 13  

60-02: Agenda posting ............................................................................................................................................. 13  

60-03: Agenda packet .............................................................................................................................................. 14  

60-04: Meeting Preparation .................................................................................................................................... 14  

60-05: Public requests for Additions to the Agenda ................................................................................................ 14  

70-00: Board Meeting Conduct ................................................................................................................... 15 

70-01: Attendance at Meetings ............................................................................................................................... 15  

70-02: Agenda timing .............................................................................................................................................. 15  

70-03: Rules of order ............................................................................................................................................... 15  

70-04: Obtaining the Floor ...................................................................................................................................... 15  

70-05: Conduct of meetings .................................................................................................................................... 16  

70-06: Motions ........................................................................................................................................................ 16  

70-07: Secondary Motions ....................................................................................................................................... 16  

70-08: Oral Communication (Public Comment) ....................................................................................................... 17  

70-09: Written Correspondence .............................................................................................................................. 18  

70-10: Closed sessions ............................................................................................................................................. 18  

70-11: Items not on the agenda .............................................................................................................................. 18  

70-12: Adjourned Meetings ..................................................................................................................................... 18  

70-13: Annual Organizational Meeting .................................................................................................................... 18  

70-14: Decorum ....................................................................................................................................................... 19  

16



BOARD OF DIRECTORS POLICY MANUAL 

V7.0 Adopted 01.28.2020 
 2  

 

70-15: Disruption of meetings ................................................................................................................................. 19  

70-16: Amendment of Rules of Order ..................................................................................................................... 19  

80-00: Minutes of Board Meetings ............................................................................................................. 20 

90-00: Review of Administrative Decisions ................................................................................................ 21 

100-00: Rules of Order for Conduct of  Committees of the Board of Directors ......................................... 22 

100-01: Purpose and Scope ..................................................................................................................................... 22  

100-02: Ad-Hoc Committees ................................................................................................................................... 22  

101-00: Duties of the Board President and Vice President ........................................................................ 23 

101-01: Presiding Officer ......................................................................................................................................... 23  

101-02: Duties Regarding Meetings ........................................................................................................................ 23  

101-03: Responsibilities ........................................................................................................................................... 23  

102-00: Meeting Stipends ........................................................................................................................... 24 

103-00: Training, Education and Conferences ............................................................................................ 25 

103-01: Reimbursement .......................................................................................................................................... 26  

103-02: Annual Disclosure Of Reimbursements ...................................................................................................... 26  

104-00: Code of Ethics ................................................................................................................................ 27 

104-01: Ethics Training ............................................................................................................................................ 28  

105-00: Personnel Policies .......................................................................................................................... 29 

106-00: Election of Officers ........................................................................................................................ 31 

106-01: Resignation And Vacancies ......................................................................................................................... 31  

106-02: Inconsistent, Incompatible And Conflicting Employment Or Activities ...................................................... 32  

106-03: Legal Liabilities Of Directors ....................................................................................................................... 32  

106-04: Election of Officers (Internal) ..................................................................................................................... 32  

107-00: Investment Policy .......................................................................................................................... 33 

 

17



BOARD OF DIRECTORS POLICY MANUAL 

V7.0 Adopted 01.28.2020 
 3  

 

MISSION STATEMENT AND OBJECTIVES OF THE 

AROMAS WATER DISTRICT 
The Aromas Water District is dedicated to providing a reliable supply of high-quality 
water. 

The mission of Aromas Water District (AWD) will be accomplished through the implementation of the 
following objectives: 

OBJECTIVE I: STAFFING 
Provide an efficient and adequate staff of employees and consultants dedicated to the District mission 
and responsive to the Board that is provided with proper resources and compensation. 

OBJECTIVE II: COMMUNICATIONS 
Establish and maintain an environment that encourages the open exchange of ideas and information 
between Board member, staff and the public that is positive, honest, concise, understandable, 
responsive and cost-efficient. 

OBJECTIVE III: EDUCATION 
Develop and maintain a superior level of understanding and competence in the Board of Directors and 
staff and assure the District’s awareness of the benefits of safe operations, proper claims procedures 
and District operations. 

18



BOARD OF DIRECTORS POLICY MANUAL 

V7.0 Adopted 01.28.2020 
 4  

 

10-00: THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS; POWERS, 
DUTIES AND FUNCTIONS 

10-01: ROLE OF INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS 
The Board of Directors is the governing body and final authority for the Aromas Water District (District). 
Directors are responsible for monitoring the District’s progress in financing and attaining its goals and 
objectives, while pursuing its mission. Apart from normal functions as a part of this unit, individual 
Directors may not commit the District to any policy, act or expenditure unless duly authorized by the 
Board of Directors. Nor may an individual Director direct staff to perform specific duties unless duly 
authorized by the Board of Directors. Directors do not represent any factional segment of the 
constituency, but rather, are part of the body which represents and acts for the constituency as a whole. 

 Each Director has the right to place an item on a subsequent Board of Directors Meeting agenda 
by submitting a request to the President of the Board or the General Manager. The deadline for 
submittal of an agenda item by a Director shall be the preceding Wednesday at 4:00 p.m. before 
the scheduled Board of Directors meeting date at the office of the Aromas Water District. Agenda 
item requests received after the submittal deadline for a specific meeting would be added, at the 
discretion of the President, to a subsequent regularly scheduled agenda. 

 Directors will make every effort to attend assigned Board of Directors and Committee meetings; 
to prepare adequately for each such meeting; and, to observe the rules of decorum as set forth 
herein. 

 Whenever an individual Director will be absent or late for a Board of Directors or Committee 
meeting, the Director shall notify the District staff at the earliest opportunity. 

 When requesting information from staff, Directors shall contact the General Manager and not 
contact staff directly. When responding to constituent requests and concerns, Directors should 
reroute such inquiries to the General Manager. 

 Each Director shall decide individually on what contact information will be released by District 
staff to the public. To accomplish this in an orderly and consistent manner, each Director shall 
provide the District with a completed and signed Director Contact Authorization Form. Directors 
shall be responsible for all updates and amendments to said Director Contact Authorization Form. 

10-02: POWERS 
 The Board of Directors is responsible for the establishment of policy and general control of the 

District. This broad authority shall be exercised in accordance with all applicable federal, state and 
local laws and regulations. The Board of Directors may execute any powers delegated by law to 
the District and shall discharge any duty imposed by law upon the District. 

 The enabling codes, including inter alia, Sections 30,000 et. seq. of the California Water Code 
dealing with County Water Districts, established by the California State Legislature empowers the 
Board of Directors to have broad authority and flexibility in carrying out financial activities which 
meet its individual needs. 

19



BOARD OF DIRECTORS POLICY MANUAL 

V7.0 Adopted 01.28.2020 
 5  

 

10-03: DUTIES 
Directors are expected to carry out their responsibilities to the best of their abilities. In order to 
accomplish this goal, Directors should be present for scheduled meetings or events whenever possible. In 
accordance with California Government Code § 1770. Duties include: 

 Act at legal meetings. 

 Establish written policies for District operation. 

 Be responsible for all District finances by approving the fiscal budget and monitoring the budget 
spending. 

 Set rates and use fees for District services. 

 Hires and discharge the General Manager, Legal Counsel and Financial Auditor, and annually 
evaluates the General Manager. The Financial Auditor shall be reviewed on a triennial basis. 

 Establish written policy on how the Board of Directors meetings are conducted. 

 Develop a master plan for the District. 

 Ratify committee appointments made by the President. 

 Establish Director compensation. 

10-04: FUNCTIONS 
The powers and duties of the Board of Directors include governing, executive and judicial functions. These 
relate to the Board's own operations as a governing body and to all functions of the District. 

GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS 
To fulfill its responsibility, the Board is committed to establishing policies to govern District activities. The 
Board of Directors shall consider and approve or disapprove matters submitted to it by a Director, Staff 
or the public. The Board of Directors shall prescribe rules for its own governance, which are consistent 
with its "enabling code" or by other Federal or State laws and regulations. 

EXECUTIVE FUNCTIONS 
The Board of Directors is authorized to delegate any of its powers and duties to an officer or employee of 
the District. The Board of Directors, however, retains ultimate responsibility for the performance of those 
delegated powers or duties. 

JUDICIAL FUNCTIONS 
The Board of Directors expects public complaints to be resolved at the lowest possible administrative 
level. Provided these activities are not in conflict with, inconsistent with, or preempted by law, the method 
of resolving public complaints is as follows: 

1. The individual with a complaint will discuss it with the General Manager. If this individual 
registering the complaint is not satisfied with the disposition of the complaint by the General 
Manager, the complaint may be filed with the Board of Directors. 

2. The Board of Directors may consider the matter at a subsequent regular meeting or call a special 
meeting. The Board of Directors will resolve the matter as expeditiously as possible. 

3. This policy does not prohibit or intend to deter a member of the public from appearing before the 
Board of Directors to present a verbal complaint or statement regarding actions of the Board of 
Directors, District programs or services, or impending considerations of the Board of Directors. 

20



BOARD OF DIRECTORS POLICY MANUAL 

V7.0 Adopted 01.28.2020 
 6  

 

20-00: BROWN ACT COMPLIANCE:  
OPEN MEETING REQUIREMENTS 

THE BROWN ACT 
The Legislature adopted the Brown Act, commonly referred to as California’s “Open Meetings Laws” in 
1964. The Brown Act is contained in Government Code § 54950.5 et seq. The Brown Act is broadly 
construed, and compliance is constitutionally mandated. 

The Ralph M. Brown Act provides for three different types of meetings; Regular, Special and Emergency. 
Accordingly, the District shall satisfy the appropriate notice requirement for each type of meeting and 
indicate the type of meeting on the notice. 

20-01: COMPLIANCE WITH BROWN ACT 
All meetings of the Board of Directors shall comply with the Brown Act. 

1. A member of the Board includes newly elected and appointed officials prior to assuming office. 

2. All Board meetings shall be open and freely accessible to the public, including those with 
disabilities. 

3. Meetings through the use of intermediaries, serial communications, or emails are prohibited. 

4. The Board shall only take action during a properly noticed meeting. 

20-02: COMMITTEES 
Standing Committees created by formal action of the Board shall comply with the Brown Act.  Ad-Hoc 
committees do not need to conform to Brown Act noticing protocols.  

21



BOARD OF DIRECTORS POLICY MANUAL 

V7.0 Adopted 01.28.2020 
 7  

 

30-00: CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
Pursuant to provision of California Government Code § 81,000 et. seq., commonly known as the Political 
Reform Act, the District shall maintain a Conflict of Interest Code.  

California Government Code § 87100 states as follows: “No public official at any level of state or local 
government shall make, participate in making or in any way attempt to use his official position to influence 
a governmental decision in which he knows or has reason to know he has a financial interest.”  

California Government Code § 87101, § 87103 and § 87103.5 provides explicit language explaining the 
nature of a “conflict of interest” and disclosure relating to Board responsibilities. Directors are required 
to comply with all District, State and Federal requirements of the “Conflict of Interest Codes”. 

The Board of Directors shall review the adopted Conflict of Interest Code on a biennial basis. At the Board 
of Directors meeting by September of each even-numbered year, or when practicable, the Board of 
Directors shall review its Conflict of Interest Code and, if amendments are needed, shall instruct the 
District Board Secretary to submit amendments to the relevant authority in accordance with applicable 
deadlines. If no amendments are needed, the Board of Directors shall submit a written statement saying 
that its Conflict of Interest Code is still accurate. 

 

30-01: DISCLOSURE OF ECONOMIC INTERESTS 
 Directors who have a financial interest in a decision within the meaning of California Government 

Code § 87100 et seq. shall publicly identify in detail the economic interest that creates the conflict, 
recuse themselves from discussing and voting on the matter and leave the room until after the 
discussion, vote, and any other disposition of the matter is concluded. 

 Identification shall occur following the announcement of the agenda item to be discussed or voted 
upon, but prior to commencement of either the discussion or vote. 

 If the agenda item is to take place during a closed session, identification of the economic interest 
shall be made during the public meeting prior to the closed session but is limited to a declaration 
that the Director has a conflict of interest. The economic interest that is the basis for the conflict 
need not be disclosed. 

 Directors are not required to leave the room for an agenda item on the consent calendar provided 
that the Director recuses him/herself and publicly discloses the economic interest as described 
above. 

 Notwithstanding this section, when the conflict is a personal interest as defined by applicable Fair 
Political Practices Commission regulations, a director may speak as a member of the general 
public during the time that the general public speaks on the issue, provided the Director has 
complied with the provision of this section regarding identification of the conflict, recuses 
his/herself from voting on the matter and, leaves the Board conference table to speak from the 
same area as the members of the general public. Directors disqualified pursuant to this section 
shall not be counted toward achieving a quorum while the item is being discussed. 

  

22



BOARD OF DIRECTORS POLICY MANUAL 

V7.0 Adopted 01.28.2020 
 8  

 

30-02: LEGALLY REQUIRED PARTICIPATION 
The Political Reform Act does not prevent the Board of Directors from acting when it is legally required to 
do so. If too many Directors are disqualified pursuant to said Political Reform Act, that the Board of 
Directors cannot act, the Board of Directors may bring back sufficient disqualified Directors under the 
following conditions: 

1. Disqualified Directors must disclose with “particularity” the economic interest that is the basis for 
the Conflict of Interest. The action of the Board of Directors must be a decision where no 
alternative method exists for it to be made. 

2. Only the minimum number of Directors required to make a quorum of the Board of Directors shall 
be brought back. 

3. Directors to be brought back shall be selected by a random method. 

4. This legally required participation rule may not be invoked: 
a) To break a tie or when a quorum of the Board of Directors can be convened who are not 

disqualified due to a Political Reform Act Conflict; or 
b) When a qualified Director is absent. 

 
In any event, the California Government Code Section 1090 prohibits all contracts between a public official 
and the entity on which he or she serves. 

23



BOARD OF DIRECTORS POLICY MANUAL 

V7.0 Adopted 01.28.2020 
 9  

 

40-00: BOARD ACTIONS AND DECISIONS 
The Board of Directors shall act only at regular, special or emergency meetings, as directed by State Law 
and in compliance with the Ralph M Brown Act. Individual Directors shall have no power to act for the 
District, or the Board of Directors, or to direct District staff, except as authorized by the Board of Directors. 

40-01: GOVERNING LAWS 
The Board of Directors shall comply with and shall be guided by applicable provisions of this Policy Manual, 
and the rules and regulations of the District as established by the motions, resolutions and ordinances 
enacted by the Board of Directors. Motions, resolutions and ordinances may be enacted by the Board in 
accordance with California Water Code § 30523. 

Any of the within policies not required by law may be altered, amended, or repealed by a majority of the 
Board quorum at a duly authorized meeting. This Board of Directors Policy Manual shall be reviewed 
biennially by the Board of Directors. 

40-02: ORDINANCES, RESOLUTIONS AND MOTIONS 
The Board of Directors shall act only by ordinance, resolution, or motion. Except where action is taken by 
the unanimous vote of all Directors present and voting, the ayes and noes shall be taken upon the passage 
of all ordinances, resolutions or motions and shall be entered in the minutes. An ordinance does not 
require two readings at separate meetings unless otherwise prescribed by law. Unless otherwise provided 
by its own terms, all ordinances, resolutions and motions shall become effective upon adoption.  

Any member of the Board of Directors, including the President, can make a motion. Motions do require a 
second. A motion dies for lack of a second. The President may vote on all motions unless disqualified or 
abstaining. The President shall not call for a vote on any motion until sufficient time has been allowed to 
permit all members of the Board of Directors to speak. Complex motions should generally be prepared in 
writing and read aloud to the members of the Board of Directors at the time the motion is made. If a 
motion is not in writing, and if it is necessary for full understanding of the matter before the Board of 
Directors, the President shall restate the question prior to the vote. Common motions may be stated in 
abbreviated form and will be put into complete form in the minutes. Until the President states the 
question, the maker may modify their motion or withdraw it completely. However, after the President 
has stated the question, the motion may be changed only by a motion to amend which is passed by a 
majority vote of the Board of Directors. 

PARLIAMENTARY PROCEDURES AFFECTING MOTIONS 
After a motion has been made, the following motions can be applied to it: 

 All motions can have the motion to withdraw applied to them. 

 All debatable motions can have the motions to close debate and to limit debate applied to them. 

 All motions that may be worded in more than one way, producing different results, can have the 
motion to amend applied to them. 

 The main motion can have all the subsidiary and specific main motions applied to it. 

Specific main motions can have no other motions applied to them, except that the motions to reconsider 
and to rescind may have the motions to close debate and to limit debate applied to them. 

 Privileged and incidental motions can have no other motion applied to them, except that the 
motion to recess may be amended, and an appeal may have the motion to close debate and the 
motion to limit debate applied to it. 

24



BOARD OF DIRECTORS POLICY MANUAL 

V7.0 Adopted 01.28.2020 
 10  

 

ADOPTION OR REJECTION 
Actions by the Board of Directors include but are not limited to the following: 

1. Adoption or rejection of regulations or policies 
2. Adoption or rejection of a resolution 
3. Adoption or rejection of an ordinance 
4. Approval or rejection of any contract or expenditure 
5. Approval or rejection of any proposal which commits District funds or facilities, including 

employment and dismissal of personnel 
6. Approval or disapproval of matters that require or may require the District or its employees to 

take action and/or provide services 

ROUTINE BUSINESS 
Matters of routine business such as approval of the minutes and approval of minor matters may be 
expedited by assuming unanimous consent of the members of the Board of Directors and having the 
President state that without objection the matter will stand approved. Should any director object to such 
unanimous consent, the president shall then call for a vote[RB1]. 

ORDERLY DISCUSSION 
To promote discussion of the issues before the Board of Directors, each Director shall be recognized by 
the chair before speaking. Notwithstanding any provision of this Policy, however, each Director shall have 
a right to be heard within reason on any issue before the Board of Directors. Each Director may seek 
information or comment by the staff on any question. 

40-03: A QUORUM 
Action can only be taken by the three-vote majority of the five-member Board of Directors representing 
a quorum for the conduct of business. 

Until a quorum is present, there can be no meeting of the Board of Directors. The presence of a minimum 
of three Board members is required to constitute a quorum of the five-member Board of Directors. No 
ordinance, resolution or motion shall be passed by the Board of Directors without a majority vote of the 
Board[RB2]. County Water District Boards cannot pass anything without at least 3 votes in favor.  So, if the 
quorum is three people, then all have to agree to pass anything. “No ordinance, resolution, or motion 
shall be passed or become effective without the affirmative votes of at least a majority of the members 
of the board.” Cal. Water Code § 30525. A member abstaining in a vote is considered as absent for that 
vote. A member abstaining due to a conflict of interest does not count towards a quorum. 

 Example. If three of five Directors are present at a meeting, a quorum exists and business can be 
conducted unless the abstention is due to a conflict of interest. However, if one Director abstains 
on a particular action and the other two cast "aye" votes, no action is taken because a "majority 
of the Board" did not vote in favor of the action. 

 Example. If an action is proposed requiring a two-thirds vote and two Directors abstain, the 
proposed action cannot be approved because four of the five Directors would have to vote in 
favor of the action. 

 Example. If a vacancy exists on the Board and a vote is taken to appoint an individual to fill said 
vacancy, three Directors must vote in favor of the appointment for it to be approved. If two of the 
four Directors present abstain, the appointment is not approved. 

25



BOARD OF DIRECTORS POLICY MANUAL 

V7.0 Adopted 01.28.2020 
 11  

 

ABSTENTIONS AND FAILURE TO VOTE 
Directors should not abstain from the Board's decision-making responsibilities unless a personal or 
financial conflict of interest exists. Directors abstaining due to a disqualifying conflict of interest will not 
be counted as part of a quorum and will be considered absent for the purposes of determining the 
outcome of a vote on the matter. Directors who fail to vote in the absence of a declared conflict of interest 
will be counted as part of a quorum and in effect consent that a majority of the quorum will determine 
the outcome of a vote on the matter. 

40-04: DIRECTION 
The Board may give directions that are not formal action. Such directions do not require formal procedural 
process. Such directions include the Board's directives and instructions to the General Manager. 

1. The President shall determine, by consensus, a Board directive and shall state it for clarification. 
Should any two Directors challenge the statement of the President, a voice vote may be 
requested. 

2. A formal motion may be made to place a disputed directive on a future agenda for Board 
consideration, or to take some other action (such as refer the matter to the General Manager for 
review and recommendation, etc.). 

3. Informal action by the Board is still Board action and shall only occur regarding matters that 
appear on the agenda for the Board meeting during which said informal action is taken. 

4. Nothing in this policy prevents the Board from providing direction to the General Manager in 
response to public comments or under Board member or General Manager comments, as allowed 
under the Brown Act. No vote or action shall be taken. 

26



BOARD OF DIRECTORS POLICY MANUAL 

V7.0 Adopted 01.28.2020 
 12  

 

50-00: TYPES OF BOARD MEETINGS 
50-01: REGULAR MEETINGS 
Regular meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held on the fourth Tuesday of each calendar month at 
7:00pm in the District Conference Room located at 388 Blohm Ave, Aromas, CA 95004. The date, time and 
place of regular Board meetings may be reconsidered at such other time as the Board may determine due 
to a change in District needs and circumstances. 

50-02: SPECIAL MEETINGS 
Special meetings of the Board of Directors may be called by the Board President or by a majority of the 
Board. 

1. All Directors shall be notified of the special Board meeting and the purpose or purposes for which 
it is called. Notice of the meeting shall be in writing, received by them at least 24 hours prior to 
the meeting. 

2. An agenda shall be prepared and posted at least 24 hours before the meeting, as specified in AWD 
Policy #40-02 and shall be delivered with the notice of the special meeting to the Board of 
Directors. 

3. Notice of the meeting shall be provided to the local newspaper and any other media outlet or 
person who has requested to receive notices of meetings by serving a copy of the agenda at least 
24 hours before the meeting. 

4. Only those items of business listed in the call for the special meeting shall be considered by the 
Board at any special meeting. 

50-03: EMERGENCY MEETINGS 
In the event of an emergency situation involving matters upon which prompt action is necessary due to 
the disruption or threatened disruption of public facilities, the Board of Directors may hold an emergency 
special meeting without complying with the 24-hour notice requirement. An emergency situation means 
a crippling disaster which severely impairs public health, safety, or both, as determined by a majority of 
the Board. 

1. When possible, notice shall be provided to the media outlets by telephone at least one hour 
before the meeting. 

2. Actions taken during an emergency meeting shall be by roll call vote. 

3. The Board may meet in closed session if agreed to by a two-thirds vote of the members present, 
or if less than two thirds present, by unanimous vote. 

4. Following an emergency meeting, the minutes of the meeting, a list of persons notified or 
attempted to be notified of the meeting, and actions taken must be posted for ten days in the 
District office. 

27



BOARD OF DIRECTORS POLICY MANUAL 

V7.0 Adopted 01.28.2020 
 13  

 

60-00: BOARD MEETING AGENDA 
60-01: AGENDA PREPARATION 
The General Manager, in cooperation with the Board President, shall prepare an agenda for each regular 
and special meeting of the Board of Directors in accordance with the Brown Act. Any Director may contact 
the General Manager and request an item to be placed on the agenda no later than 4:00 P.M. on the day 
that is 48 hours prior to the closing of the agenda for the next meeting date; the Wednesday before the 
Regular Board meeting. 

The General Manager, in consultation with the Board President, shall be responsible for the preparation 
of a written agenda for each regular meeting and/or special meeting of the Board of Directors as those 
terms or its successor terms are defined within the meaning of the Ralph M. Brown Act (California 
Government Code § 54950 et seq.).  

The General Manager, in consultation with the President, shall be responsible for the preparation of a 
written agenda for each regular meeting and/or special meeting of other “legislative bodies,” of the 
Aromas Water District as those terms or its successor terms are defined within the meaning of the Ralph 
M. Brown Act (California Government Code § 54950 et seq.). The District shall be responsible for the 
posting of the agenda for all meetings of the Board of Directors and/or other “legislative bodies”, as 
defined within the meaning of the Ralph M. Brown Act, in compliance with, and as authorized under the 
applicable provisions of the Ralph M. Brown Act.  

60-01: AGENDA DESCRIPTIONS 
All Board agendas shall include an unambiguous description of each item on the agenda to be discussed, 
including closed session items. The General Manager shall ensure that the description gives notice to the 
public of the essential nature of business to be considered. 

60-02: AGENDA POSTING 
Agendas for regular meetings shall be posted 72 hours in advance of the meeting and agendas for special 
meetings shall be posted 24 hours in advance of the meeting. The posting must occur in a place that is 
freely accessible to the public and on the District’s website. The internet posting shall occur on the 
District’s primary website homepage through a prominent, direct link to the current agenda. The agenda 
shall also be accessible in an open location by that date. 

Posting of the agenda for all regular meetings of the Board of Directors, as defined within the meaning of 
the Ralph M. Brown Act, shall be in compliance with California Government Code § 54954.2. Posting of 
the agenda for all special meetings of the Board of Director and/or other “legislative bodies”, as defined 
within the meaning of the Ralph M. Brown Act, shall be in compliance with California Government Code 
§ 54956. Posting of the agendas for all “emergency meetings” of the Board of Directors, as defined within 
the meaning of the Ralph M. Brown Act shall be in compliance with California Government Code 
§ 54956.5(b).  

28



BOARD OF DIRECTORS POLICY MANUAL 

V7.0 Adopted 01.28.2020 
 14  

 

60-03: AGENDA PACKET 
When distributing agenda packet and other materials to members of the Board of Directors, those 
materials should be provided to all members at the same time. Agenda packet, except for closed session 
materials, should also be made available to the public at the same time as made available to the Board.  
A copy of the agenda for each regular meeting of the Board of Directors shall be forwarded to each Board 
member at least three days in advance of each regular meeting, together with copies of all applicable 
supporting documentation; minutes to be approved; staff reports; and other available documents 
pertinent to the meeting. Directors shall review agenda materials before each meeting. Individual 
Directors may confer directly with the General Manager to request additional information on the agenda 
items. 

60-04: MEETING PREPARATION 
Directors shall thoroughly prepare themselves to discuss agenda items at meetings of the Board of 
Directors. 

Directors may request information from staff before meetings: 

1. Requests by individual Directors for substantive information and/or research from District staff 
will be channeled through the General Manager. 

2. The General Manager shall be responsible for providing the requested information and shall make 
all information equally available to all Directors. 

3. If writings are distributed to a majority of the Board in connection with an agenda item, those 
writings shall be made available to the public in the manner required by law.  

60-05: PUBLIC REQUESTS FOR ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA 
Any member of the public may request that a matter directly related to District business be placed on the 
agenda of a regularly scheduled meeting of the Board of Directors, subject to the following conditions: 

1. The request must be in writing and be submitted to the General Manager [or other responsible 
managing employee] together with supporting documents and information, if any, at least seven 
business days prior to the date of the meeting. 

2. The General Manager shall be the sole judge of whether the public request is or is not a "matter 
directly related to District business." 

3. The General Manager shall determine the timing of when the item will be placed on the agenda. 

4. The public member requesting the agenda item may appeal the General Manager’s decision at 
the next regular meeting of the Board of Directors. Any Director may request that the item be 
placed on the agenda of the Board’s next regular meeting. 

5. No matter, which is legally a proper matter for consideration by the Board in closed session, will 
be added to an Open Session agenda under this policy. 

6. The Board of Directors may place limitations on the total time to be devoted to a public request 
issue at any meeting and may limit the time allowed for any one person to speak on the issue at 
the meeting. 

29



BOARD OF DIRECTORS POLICY MANUAL 

V7.0 Adopted 01.28.2020 
 15  

 

70-00: BOARD MEETING CONDUCT 
70-01: ATTENDANCE AT MEETINGS 
Members of the Board of Directors are expected to, and shall attend, all regular and special meetings of 
the Board unless there is good cause for absence. To be counted as present for any meeting, Board 
Members must be present for the duration of the meeting. 

Good cause for absence, including late arrivals or early departures, includes temporary illness or other 
unavoidable circumstances of which the President of the Board is notified prior to the meeting. Good 
cause also includes Board authorized meeting absences such as attendance at a conference directly 
related to the functions and interests of the District or at the meeting of another public agency in order 
to participate in an official capacity. 

A Board Member who will be absent for good cause may notify the President by email, telephone 
communication, or letter. The President shall notify the General Manager and the Board of all absences 
that are excused for good cause. The minutes shall indicate whether an absence was excused. 

A vacancy shall occur if a Board Member is absent from three consecutive regular meetings without good 
cause, except as otherwise provided for by law or as authorized by the Board. 

70-02: AGENDA TIMING 
All Board meetings shall commence at the time stated on the agenda and shall be guided by same. The 
placement of an item on the agenda shall not be deemed a requirement that the items proceed in any 
particular order. The Board President, with concurrence of a majority of the Board, may alter the order in 
which agenda items shall be considered for discussion and/or action by the Board. 

70-03: RULES OF ORDER 
Meetings of the Board of Directors shall be conducted by the President in a manner consistent with the 
policies of the District. 

Action items shall be brought before and considered by the Board by motion in accordance with this 
policy. These rules of order are intended to be informal and applied flexibly. The Board prefers a flexible 
form of meeting and, therefore, does not conduct its meetings under formalized rules - Robert's Rules of 
Order. 

If a Director believes order is not being maintained or procedures are not adequate, then he/she should 
raise a point of order - not requiring a second - to the President. If the ruling of the President is not 
satisfactory to the Director, then it may be appealed to the Board. A majority of the Board will govern and 
determine the point of order. 

70-04: OBTAINING THE FLOOR 
Any Director desiring to speak should address the President and, upon recognition by the President, may 
address the subject under discussion. 

30



BOARD OF DIRECTORS POLICY MANUAL 

V7.0 Adopted 01.28.2020 
 16  

 

70-05: CONDUCT OF MEETINGS 
The following concepts shall be applied to Board meetings: 

1. The meetings shall be conducted in an open and fair manner. 
2. The public shall be given ample opportunity to participate in the meetings. 
3. Due process principles shall apply to quasi-judicial proceedings, or as otherwise required by law. 
4. The meetings shall proceed in a manner that enables the Board to consider problems to be solved 

and make wise decisions intended to solve the problems. 
5. The Board may receive, consider and take any needed action with respect to reports of 

accomplishment of District operations. 
6. Noticed public hearings shall be conducted in an orderly fashion, with the Board President 

establishing the order of the proceedings. 
7. The Board may weigh and determine the credibility of evidence and public comment. 

70-06: MOTIONS 
Any Director, including the President, may make or second a motion. A motion shall be brought and 
considered as follows: 

 A Director makes a motion; another Director seconds the motion; and the President states the 
motion. 

 Once the motion has been stated by the President, it is open to discussion and debate. After the 
matter has been fully debated, and after the public in attendance has had an opportunity to 
comment, the President will call for the vote. 

 If the public in attendance has had an opportunity to comment on the proposed action, any 
Director may move to immediately bring the question being debated to a vote, suspending any 
further debate. The motion must be made, seconded, and approved by a majority vote of the 
Board. 

70-07: SECONDARY MOTIONS 
Ordinarily, only one motion can be considered at a time and a motion must be disposed of before any 
other motions or business are considered. There are a few exceptions to this general rule, though, where 
a secondary motion concerning the main motion may be made and considered before voting on the main 
motion. 

1. Motion to Amend: A main motion may be amended before it is voted on, either by the consent of 
the Directors who moved and seconded, or by a new motion and second. 

2. Motion to Table: A main motion may be indefinitely tabled before it is voted on by motion made 
to table, which is then seconded and approved by a majority vote of the Board. 

3. Motion to Postpone: A main motion may be postponed to a certain time by a motion to postpone, 
which is then seconded and approved by a majority vote of the Board. 

4. Motion to Refer to Committee: A main motion may be referred to a Board committee for further 
study and recommendation by a motion to refer to committee, which is then seconded and 
approved by a majority vote of the Board. 

5. Motion to Close Debate and Vote Immediately: As provided above, any Director may move to 
close debate and immediately vote on a main motion. 

6. Motion to Adjourn: A meeting may be adjourned by motion made, seconded, and approved by a 
majority vote of the Board before voting on a main motion. 

31



BOARD OF DIRECTORS POLICY MANUAL 

V7.0 Adopted 01.28.2020 
 17  

 

70-08: ORAL COMMUNICATION (PUBLIC COMMENT) 
The Oral Communications portion of the agenda is reserved for citizen communications on matters not 
otherwise on the agenda.  

1. Any person may address the Board of Directors after obtaining recognition by the President 
or presiding officer.  

a. For regular meetings the Board shall provide the public with an opportunity to 
address matters not on the agenda during a specified Public Comment section of the 
meeting. 

b. The public may comment on any item on the agenda when that item is up for 
consideration. 

c. For special meetings, the Board shall provide the public with an opportunity to 
address any item on the agenda. 

2. All communications by interested citizens, whether during Oral Communications or other 
items on the agenda, shall be addressed to the Board of Directors as a single body, and not to 
individual Board members, staff or members of the audience. 

3. Each person addressing the Board of Directors shall designate a subject matter and give his 
or her name, however, the Board may not require members of the public to give names or 
sign a register as a condition of attendance or speaking. 

4. The Board may not prohibit public criticism, but shall control the order of the proceedings, 
including placing reasonable time limits on public comment. 

a. Unless otherwise altered by the President or presiding officer three minutes may be 
allotted to each speaker and a maximum of twenty minutes to each subject matter. 

b. The Board president may allow more or less time per speaker and per subject 
comment time when necessary for a full and fair proceeding. 

5. No person, other than the Board of Directors and the person having the floor, shall be 
permitted to enter into the discussion, either directly or through a Director, without the 
permission of the President or presiding officer. 

6. No member of the public shall approach the Board of Directors table while the Board is in 
session, unless granted permission by the President or presiding officer. 

7. No disruptive conduct shall be permitted at any Board meeting: 

a. Proper decorum must be observed by Directors, staff, speakers and the audience.  

b. The President or presiding officer shall preserve order and decorum, discourage 
personal attacks, and confine debate to the question under discussion.  

c. Persistence in disruptive conduct shall be grounds for summary termination, by the 
Board President, of that person's privilege of address.  

d. The President or presiding officer, or a majority of the Board, may eject from a 
meeting any person who becomes disorderly, abusive, or disruptive, or who fails or 
refuses to obey a ruling of the President regarding a matter of order or procedure. 

e. No cell phone operation or audible pager use is allowed in the Board of Directors 
chambers. 

32



BOARD OF DIRECTORS POLICY MANUAL 

V7.0 Adopted 01.28.2020 
 18  

 

70-09: WRITTEN CORRESPONDENCE 
The Written Correspondence portion of the agenda is established to act as a report of written materials 
received by the District as a whole but may also include items requested for inclusion by individual 
Directors or members of the public. Written Communications, which require no official actions by the 
Board of Directors, may be listed only by title and date received, and not be presented in its entirety. 
Written Correspondence not presented in its entirety will be maintained by the District for a period of 
two years in paper form - electronic is subject to Board policies for retention of documents. 

70-10: CLOSED SESSIONS 
The Board of Directors' meeting shall be open to the public, except when the Board is convened in Closed 
Session, as authorized under provisions of the Ralph M. Brown Act (California Government Code § 54950 
et seq.). 

The Board may conduct a closed session during a noticed meeting for certain matters, as identified on the 
agenda, where it is necessary to conduct business in private. Major reasons for permissible closed 
sessions, as authorized by the Brown Act, include real property transactions, labor negotiations, and 
pending litigation. The Board shall allow public comment on any closed session item before going into 
closed session. Except as required by law, all proceedings in Closed Sessions shall remain confidential. 

70-11: ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA 
The Board shall not discuss or take action on any item that does not appear on the posted agenda except 
that the Board may act on items not on the agenda to address emergency situations, subsequent need 
items, and hold-over items from a continued previous meeting held within the prior five days. Emergency 
items require a 4/5 of the Board finding that it is an emergency.  The Board may also respond to public 
comments and make announcements. 

70-12: ADJOURNED MEETINGS 
A majority vote of the quorum of the Board of Directors may adjourn any Board meeting at any place in 
the agenda to a time and place specified in the order of adjournment, except that if no quorum is present 
or no Directors are present at any regular or adjourned regular meeting, the Board president or General 
Manager may declare the meeting adjourned to a stated time and place. Notice of the adjourned meeting 
shall be posted on or near the door of the meeting within 24 hours after the adjournment and the 
adjourned meeting shall be noticed in the same manner as a special meeting. 

70-13: ANNUAL ORGANIZATIONAL MEETING 
The Board of Directors shall hold an annual election at its regular meeting in December. At this meeting 
the Board will elect a President and Vice President from among its members to serve during the coming 
calendar year. 

33



BOARD OF DIRECTORS POLICY MANUAL 

V7.0 Adopted 01.28.2020 
 19  

 

70-14: DECORUM 
The President shall take whatever actions are necessary and appropriate to preserve order and decorum 
during Board meetings, including public hearings. The President may eject any person or persons making 
personal, impertinent or slanderous remarks, refusing to abide by a request from the President, or 
otherwise disrupting the meeting or hearing. 

1. Directors shall at all times conduct themselves with courtesy to each other, to staff, and to 
members of the audience present at Board meetings. 

2. Directors shall defer to the presiding officer for conduct of meetings of the Board but shall be free 
to question and discuss items on the agenda. All comments should be brief and confined to the 
matter being discussed by the Board. 

3. Directors may request for inclusion into the meeting minutes brief comments pertinent to an 
agenda item only at the meeting that item is discussed (including, if desired, a position on 
abstention or dissenting vote). 

70-15: DISRUPTION OF MEETINGS 
The President may also declare a short recess during any meeting. 

Willful disruption of any of the meetings of the Board of Directors shall not be permitted. If the 
President finds that there is willful disruption of any meeting of the Board, he/she may do the following: 

1. Notify the disrupting parties to immediately stop the conduct and that they will be asked to 
leave the meeting if the behavior continues. 

2. If the behavior continues after notice, order the disrupting parties out of the room and conduct 
the Board's business without them present. 

3. In cases of extreme disruption, clear the room of all members of the public, and conduct the 
Board's business without them present. 

4. Duly accredited representatives of the news media, whom the President finds not to have 
participated in the disruption, shall be permitted to remain in the meeting. 

70-16: AMENDMENT OF RULES OF ORDER 
By motion made, seconded and approved by a majority vote, the Board may, at its discretion and at any 
meeting: a) temporarily suspend these rules in whole or in part; b) amend these rules in whole or in part; 
or, c) both. 

34



BOARD OF DIRECTORS POLICY MANUAL 

V7.0 Adopted 01.28.2020 
 20  

 

80-00: MINUTES OF BOARD MEETINGS 
The Secretary of the Board of Directors shall keep minutes of all regular and special meetings of the Board. 

1. Copies of a meeting’s minutes shall be distributed to Directors as part of the information packet 
for the next regular meeting of the Board, at which time the Board will consider approving the 
minutes as presented or with modifications. Once approved by the Board, the official minutes 
shall be scanned and made available for public review.  

2. Unless directed otherwise, an electronic recording of regular and special meetings of the Board 
of Directors will be made. The recording is backed up and stored on the District Server for a 
minimum of 60 days. Members of the public may inspect recordings of Board meetings without 
charge on a playback device that will be made available by the District. 

3. Motions, resolutions or ordinances shall be recorded in the minutes as having passed or failed. 
The motion makers, and individual votes will be recorded. A unanimous vote shall be recorded as 
a vote in favor by each member. 

4. All resolutions and ordinances adopted by the Board shall be numbered consecutively, starting 
new at the beginning of each calendar year. 

5. In addition to other information that the Board may deem to be of importance, the following 
information (if relevant) shall be included in each meeting’s minutes: 

 Date, place and type of each meeting; 
 Directors present and absent by name; 
 Administrative staff present by name; 
 Call to order; 
 Time and name of late arriving Directors; 
 Time and name of early departing Directors; 
 Names of Directors absent during any agenda item upon which action was taken; 
 Summary record of public comment regarding matters not on the agenda, including 

names of commentators; 
 Approval of the minutes or modified minutes of preceding meetings; 
 Summary record of staff reports; 
 Complete information as to each subject of the Board’s deliberation; 
 Record of the vote of each Director on every action item for which the vote was not 

unanimous; 
 Resolutions and ordinances described as to their substantive content and sequential 

numbering; 
 Record of all contracts and agreements, and their amendment, approved by the Board; 
 Approval of the annual budget; 
 Approval of all polices, rules and/or regulations; 
 Approval of all dispositions of District assets; 
 Approval of all purchases of District assets;  
 Approval of financial reports; 
 Date and time of next meeting; and, 
 Time of meeting’s adjournment. 

35



BOARD OF DIRECTORS POLICY MANUAL 

V7.0 Adopted 01.28.2020 
 21  

 

90-00: REVIEW OF ADMINISTRATIVE DECISIONS 
Code of Civil Procedure § 1094.6. The provisions of California Code of Civil Procedure § 1094.6 shall be 
applicable to judicial review of all administrative decisions of the Board of Directors pursuant to the 
provisions of § 1094.5 of said code. The provisions of § 1094.6 shall prevail over any conflicting provision 
and any otherwise applicable law, rule, policy or regulation of the District, affecting the subject matter of 
an appeal. 

1. In accordance with § 1094.6, the time to seek judicial relief shall be 90 days following the date in 
which the Board’s decision becomes final. 

2. No person aggrieved by a Board decision shall be allowed to seek judicial relief unless they shall 
have first raised that issue before the Board and provided the Board with an opportunity to 
address the issue. 

3. No person aggrieved by a Board decision shall be allowed to seek judicial relief unless they shall 
have first exhausted all available administrative remedies made available by the District. 

90-01: APPLICABILITY 
This policy affects those administrative decisions rendered by the Board of Directors following a 
proceeding at which notice and an opportunity to be heard has been provided. 

90-02: PURPOSE 
The purpose of this policy is to ensure efficient administration of the District, and the expeditious review 
of decisions rendered by the Board of Directors. 

90-03: CLAIMS 
Nothing in this policy shall be deemed to waive the claims filing requirements of the District when 
damages are being sought. 

36



BOARD OF DIRECTORS POLICY MANUAL 

V7.0 Adopted 01.28.2020 
 22  

 

100-00: RULES OF ORDER FOR CONDUCT OF  
COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

100-01: PURPOSE AND SCOPE 
Assignment to a Committee may be made by the Board President, a majority vote of the Board, or on their 
own initiative. Committees may be appointed to review District functions, activities, and operations 
pertaining to their designated concerns, on an as needed basis, as specified below.  

A committee of the Board of Directors may qualify as a “legislative body” as that term or its successor 
terms are defined within the meaning of the Ralph M. Brown Act (California Government Code § 54950 
et seq.). All meetings of subsidiary bodies and/or committees of the Board of Directors, which are defined 
as a “legislative body”, as that term or its successor terms are defined in the Ralph M. Brown Act, shall be 
open to the public, except when convened in Closed Session, as authorized under provisions of the Ralph 
M. Brown Act. 

Unless authority to perform a duty is expressly delegated by the Board of Directors to a committee, 
committee motions and recommendations shall be advisory to the Board of Directors and shall not 
commit the District to any policy, act or expenditure. Nor may any committee direct staff to perform 
specific duties unless duly authorized by the Board of Directors.  

100-02: AD-HOC COMMITTEES 
The purpose of an Ad-Hoc Advisory Committee and the time allowed to accomplish that purpose shall be 
outlined at the time of appointment. A temporary advisory committee shall be considered dissolved when 
its purpose has been accomplished or when the timeframe for its existence has expired, whichever occurs 
first. Any recommendations from committees shall be submitted to the Board via a written or oral report. 

1. An ad-hoc committee shall be comprised solely of members of the Board and shall consist of less 
than a majority of Board Members. 

2. An ad-hoc committee may make recommendations to the Board. The Board may not delegate any 
decision-making power to a temporary advisory committee. 

3. An ad-hoc committee shall meet on an as needed basis and shall not have a meeting schedule 
fixed by charter, ordinance, resolution, or formal action of the Board. 

37



BOARD OF DIRECTORS POLICY MANUAL 

V7.0 Adopted 01.28.2020 
 23  

 

101-00: DUTIES OF THE BOARD PRESIDENT  
AND VICE PRESIDENT 

101-01: PRESIDING OFFICER 
The President of the Board of Directors shall serve as the presiding officer at all Board meetings. In the 
absence, disability or resignation of the President, the Vice President of the Board of Directors shall serve 
as the presiding officer over all meetings of the Board. When the President disqualifies himself/herself 
from participating in an agenda item, the Vice-President shall perform the duties of the presiding officer. 
If the President and Vice President of the Board are both absent or disabled, the remaining members 
present shall select one of themselves to act as temporary presiding officer of the meeting. 

The presiding officer shall have the same rights as the other members of the Board in voting, introducing 
motions, resolutions and ordinances, and any discussion of questions that follow said actions. The 
presiding officer may move, second, debate, and vote from the chair.  

101-02: DUTIES REGARDING MEETINGS 
The President shall preside over and conduct all meetings of the Board of Directors, shall carry out the 
resolution and orders of the Board of Directors, and shall exercise such other powers and perform such 
other duties as the Board of Directors shall prescribe including, but not limited to, the following: 

a) Call the meeting to order at the appointed time; 
b) Announce the business to come before the Board in its proper order; 
c) Enforce the Board's policies in relation to the order of business and the conduct of meetings; 
d) Recognize persons who desire to speak, and protect the speaker who has the floor from disturbance 

or interference; 
e) Explain what the effect of a motion would be if it is not clear to every member; 
f) Restrict discussion to the question when a motion is before the Board; 
g) Rule on parliamentary procedure; 
h) Put motions to a vote, and state clearly the results of the vote; and 
i) Preserve order and decorum. 

101-03: RESPONSIBILITIES 
Responsibilities of the President include, but are not limited to, the following: 

a) Sign all instruments, act, and carry out stated requirements and the will of the Board; 
b) Sign the minutes of the Board meeting following their approval; 
c) Appoint and disband all committees, subject to Board ratification; 
d) Call such meetings of the Board as he/she may deem necessary, giving notice as prescribed by law; 
e) Coordinate the preparation of meeting agendas with the General Manager; 
f) Confer with the General Manager or designee on crucial matters which may occur between Board 

of Directors meetings; 
g) Be responsible for the orderly conduct of all Board meetings; 
h) Be the spokesperson for the Board; and 
i) Perform other duties as authorized by the Board. 

38



BOARD OF DIRECTORS POLICY MANUAL 

V7.0 Adopted 01.28.2020 
 24  

 

102-00: MEETING STIPENDS 
Consistent with California Water Code § 30507, by resolution of the Board of Directors, the District has 
established a monthly stipend as defined herein and by subsequent Payroll Budget Reviews. Each Board 
Member, regardless of position, is to receive the monthly stipend for the mandatory attendance at the 
monthly meeting of the Aromas Water District Board of Directors. Attendance at additional meetings and 
duties are inclusive within the same stipend. 

39



BOARD OF DIRECTORS POLICY MANUAL 

V7.0 Adopted 01.28.2020 
 25  

 

103-00: TRAINING, EDUCATION AND CONFERENCES 
Members of the Board of Directors are encouraged to attend educational conferences, seminars, 
trainings, and professional meetings when the purpose of any such activity is to improve District 
operation. There is no limit as to the number of Directors attending a particular activity when it is apparent 
that attendance is beneficial to the District, as long as a majority of the Board members do not discuss 
issues related to the District’s business, which is a violation of the Ralph Brown Act. Directors shall not 
attend conference or training event when it is apparent that there is no significant benefit to the District. 
Directors shall not attend or engage in any tour or journey for pleasure at public expense (e.g. “junkets” 
or other such events that are not beneficial to the District). 

It is the policy of the District to encourage Board development and excellence of performance by 
reimbursing actual expenses incurred for tuition, travel, lodging and meals as a result of training, 
educational courses, participation with professional organizations, and attendance at local, state and 
national conferences associated with the interests of the District. Cash advances or use of District credit 
cards for these purposes is not permitted. 

 Where necessary, the General Manager shall arrange for reimbursement to the Directors for 
conference tuition and registration expenses, and for per diem expenses. Per diem expenses, 
when appropriate, shall include meals, lodging, and travel. All expenses for which reimbursement 
is requested by Directors, or which are billed to the District by Directors, shall be submitted to the 
Accounts Clerk, together with appropriate receipts. All reimbursements shall be made in 
accordance with applicable State and federal law, including but not limited to Internal Revenue 
Service Guidelines. 

 Attendance by Directors at seminars, workshops, courses, professional organization meetings, 
and conferences shall be approved by the Board of Directors prior to the District incurring any 
reimbursable costs. 

 Expenses to the District for Board of Directors' training, education, and conferences should be 
kept to a minimum by utilizing recommendations for transportation and housing 
accommodations recommended by the General Manager, and by: 

o Utilizing hotel(s) recommended by the event sponsor in order to obtain discounted rates. 
o Directors traveling together whenever feasible and economically beneficial. 
o Requesting reservations sufficiently in advance, when possible, to obtain discounted air 

fares and hotel rates. 
A Director shall not be reimbursed for expenses incurred at any educational conference, seminar, training, 
or professional meeting event if such event occurs after the District has announced that Director’s pending 
resignation, or if such event occurs after an election in which it has been determined that the Director will 
not retain his or her seat on the Board.  

Upon returning from educational conferences, seminars, trainings, and professional meetings where 
expenses are reimbursed by the District, Directors will either prepare a written or verbal report for 
presentation at the next regular meeting of the Board. Said report shall detail what was learned at the 
session(s) that will be of benefit to the District. Materials from the session(s) may be delivered to the 
District office to be included in the District library for the future use of other Directors and staff. 

  

40



BOARD OF DIRECTORS POLICY MANUAL 

V7.0 Adopted 01.28.2020 
 26  

 

103-01: REIMBURSEMENT 
The purpose of this policy is to prescribe the manner in which members of the Aromas Water District 
Board of Directors may be reimbursed for expenditures related to approved District business without 
personal gain or loss. Directors may receive reimbursement for out of pocket expenses as established by 
resolution of the Board of Directors.  

The District shall adhere to California Government Code § 53232 through § 53232.4 when dealing with 
issues of expenditure reimbursements for Directors. This policy shall apply to all members of the Board of 
Directors and is intended to result in no personal gain or loss to a Director. 

 Directors are eligible to receive reimbursements for travel, meals, lodging, and other reasonable 
and necessary expenses associated with approved District business. Where possible, the District 
will pay expenses in advance for meals, lodging, travel, educational classes and other expenses 
consistent with the policies stated herein. No alcoholic beverages will be reimbursed. 
Reimbursement rates shall coincide with guidelines established herein, or rates set by Internal 
Revenue Service Publication 1542 or its successor publication(s), whichever are greater. 

 If lodging is in connection with a prior approved event, such lodging costs shall not exceed the 
maximum group rate published by the conference or activity sponsor. If the published group rate 
is unavailable, Directors shall be reimbursed for comparable lodging at government or IRS rates. 

 If travel is in connection with a prior approved event, the most economical mode and class of 
transportation reasonably consistent with scheduling needs must be used, using the most direct 
and time-efficient route. Directors shall use government or group rates offered by the event 
provider of transportation when available. If the group rate is unavailable, Directors shall be 
reimbursed for comparable travel at government or IRS rates. 

 Directors shall submit their requests for reimbursement on an expense report form approved by 
the General Manager.  The reimbursement form shall include an explanation of the District-
related purpose for the reimbursable expenditure(s). Receipts documenting all expenditures are 
required to be submitted in conjunction with the expense report form. Failure to submit necessary 
receipts will result in denial of the reimbursement claim. Expense reports shall be submitted 
within a reasonable time, and at no time more than fourteen calendar days after incurring the 
expense. The General Manager will review and approve or deny reimbursement requests. 

 Any and all expenses that do not fall within the adopted travel reimbursement policy or the IRS 
reimbursable rates are required to be approved or denied by the Board of Directors in a public 
meeting prior to the expense(s) being incurred. Expenses that do not adhere to the adopted travel 
reimbursement policy or the IRS reimbursable rates, and that do not receive prior approval from 
the Board of Directors in a public meeting prior to the expense being incurred, shall not be eligible 
for reimbursement. 

 Penalties for misuse of public resources or violating this policy may include, but are not limited 
to, the following: a) Restitution to the District; b) Civil penalties for misuse of public resources 
pursuant to Government Code § 8314; and (c) Prosecution for misuse of public resources, 
pursuant to § 424 of the Penal Code. It is against the law to falsify expense reports. 

103-02: ANNUAL DISCLOSURE OF REIMBURSEMENTS 
The District shall disclose any reimbursements paid by the District of at least one hundred dollars 
($100.00) for each individual charge for services or products received, at the annual Financial Audit. The 
Board of Directors shall review reimbursement information for the preceding fiscal year (July 1 - June 30) 
in advance of the Financial Audit. 

41



BOARD OF DIRECTORS POLICY MANUAL 

V7.0 Adopted 01.28.2020 
 27  

 

104-00: CODE OF ETHICS 
The District Board of Directors is committed to providing excellence in legislative leadership that results 
in providing the highest quality service to its customers. The Board of Directors is expected to maintain 
the highest ethical standards, to follow District policies and regulations, and to abide by all applicable 
local, state and federal laws. The Directors’ conduct should reflect the integrity and goals of the District.  

To assist in governing the behavior among members of the Board, the following rules shall be observed: 
a) The dignity, style, values and opinions of each Director shall be respected. 
b) Responsiveness and attentive listening in communications is encouraged. 
c) The needs of the District customers should be the priority of the Board of Directors. 
d) The primary responsibility of the Board of Directors is to formulate and evaluate its policies, which 

affect the customers and/or the employees of Aromas Water District. 
e) Differing viewpoints are healthy in the decision-making process. Individual Directors have the right 

to disagree with ideas and opinions, though doing so in a respectful manner.  
f) Once the Board of Directors acts, Directors should commit themselves to supporting the action and 

not to creating barriers to the implementation of the action. 

Directors should practice the following procedures: 
a) In seeking clarification on items, Directors may directly approach the General Manager to obtain 

information needed to supplement or enhance their knowledge and improve their legislative 
decision making. 

b) In handling complaints from residents and property owners of the District, any complaints and/or 
concerns should be referred to the General Manager and may be followed up by the entire Board 
of Directors. 

c) In handling items related to safety, concerns regarding safety hazards should be reported to the 
General Manager. Emergency situations should be dealt with immediately by taking appropriate 
action. 

d) In seeking clarification for policy-related concerns, especially those involving personnel, legal 
action, land acquisition and development, finance, and programming, these concerns should be 
referred to the General Manager directly. 

The work of the District is a team effort: 
a) All individuals should work together in a collaborative process, assisting each other in conducting 

the affairs of the District. 
b) Directors should develop a working relationship with the General Manager so current issues, 

concerns and District projects can be discussed comfortably and openly. 
c) Directors should function as a part of the whole; issues should be brought to the attention of the 

Board of Directors rather than to individual members selectively. 
d) When approached by District personnel concerning specific District policy, Directors should direct 

inquiries to the General Manager. 
e) When responding to constituent requests and concerns, Directors should be courteous, 

responding to individuals in a professional manner and route their questions through appropriate 
channels to the General Manager. 

f) Directors are responsible for monitoring the District's progress in attaining its goals in pursuit of 
its mission. 

42



BOARD OF DIRECTORS POLICY MANUAL 

V7.0 Adopted 01.28.2020 
 28  

 

104-01: ETHICS TRAINING 
All Directors, designated staff, and members of all commissions, committees and other bodies that are 
subject to the Brown Act shall receive two hours of training in general ethics principles and ethics laws 
relevant to public service within one year of election or appointment to the board of directors and at least 
once every two years thereafter, pursuant to Government Code § 53234 et seq. as may be amended from 
time to time. 

a) All ethics training shall be provided by providers whose curricula have been approved by the 
California Attorney General and the Fair Political Practices Commission. 

b) Ethics training may consist of either a group training course or a set of self-study materials with 
tests, and may be taken at home, in person, or online. 

c) Attendees shall obtain proof of participation after completing the ethics training. Applicable costs 
for attending the training shall be reimbursed by the District. 

a. The District shall maintain records indicating the name of the entity that provided the 
training and the dates ethics training was completed. Records shall be maintained for a 
period of at least five years after the date on which the training was received. These 
records are public records subject to disclosure under the California Public Records Act. 

d) District staff shall provide the prospective attendees with information on available training that 
meets the requirements of this policy at least once every year. 

e) A single training course may be used to satisfy the obligation to receive training for multiple 
agencies or positions. 

43



BOARD OF DIRECTORS POLICY MANUAL 

V7.0 Adopted 01.28.2020 
 29  

 

105-00: PERSONNEL POLICIES 
Aromas Water District is committed to the provision of an orderly, equitable and uniform personnel 
system. The Board of Directors by resolution shall establish written rules and regulations for the 
administration of the personnel system. Personnel system rules and regulations shall be reviewed at the 
Board of Directors meeting in December of each calendar year. 

105-01: PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT 
The Aromas Water District is committed to creating and maintaining a work environment free of 
objectionable and disrespectful conduct and/or communication of a sexual nature and prohibits sexual 
harassment by all employees and the Board of Directors.  

The Board of Directors, by resolution, shall establish a written policy relative to the prevention of sexual 
harassment. The District’s prevention of sexual harassment policy shall be reviewed at the Board of 
Directors meeting in December of each calendar year.  

Conduct which creates an intimidating, hostile or offensive work environment will not be tolerated. Verbal 
behavior, physical behavior, gestures and other non-verbal behavior which create said environment will 
not be tolerated.  

Any employee or member of the public who feel that they have been or are being harassed by a Director 
is strongly encouraged to immediately report such incident to the General Manager without fear of 
reprisal, regardless of the outcome of the complaint. The General Manager shall assign the investigation 
of the alleged misconduct to an outside party such as an attorney or law firm experienced in such matters. 
The General Manager shall notify the President of the Board of Directors of alleged misconduct. 
Thereafter, the President, at the next meeting of the Board of Directors, shall report the facts and nature 
of the allegations to the entire Board of Directors. If the Director charged with sexual harassment is the 
President of the Board of Directors, the General Manager shall report the fact and nature of the 
allegation(s) to the entire Board of Directors at its next meeting. If an allegation of sexual harassment 
against a Director is investigated and found to be supported, the Board of Directors reserves the right to 
take such remedial action as is appropriate under all of the circumstances, including, if warranted, 
initiating an action for recall of the Director. The Directors agree that an accusation of sexual harassment 
against any one of them must be investigated. It is further agreed that such an investigation is not an 
invasion of their right of privacy.  

To meet the requirements established by AB 1825, 2053 & 1661, each local official (Board Member) shall 
receive at least two hours of prevention of sexual harassment training and education within the first six 
months of taking office and every two years thereafter. 

105-02: NON-DISCRIMINATION 
The District shall not unlawfully discriminate against qualified employees or job applicants on the basis of 
sex, race, color, religion, national origin, ancestry, marital status, sexual orientation, physical or mental 
disability, age or war veteran status. 

Equal opportunity shall be provided to all qualified employees and applicants in every aspect of personnel 
policy and practice. The District shall not discriminate against physically or mentally disabled persons who, 
with reasonable accommodation, can perform the essential function of the job in question. All employees 
are expected to carry out their responsibilities in a manner that is free from discriminatory statements or 
conduct. 

 

44



BOARD OF DIRECTORS POLICY MANUAL 

V7.0 Adopted 01.28.2020 
 30  

 

105-03: REASONABLE ACCOMMODATION-AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT 
Pursuant to the Americans with Disabilities Act, employers have a duty to reasonably accommodate 
employees and job applicants with known disabilities. This accommodation is not required for individuals 
who are not otherwise qualified for the job nor is accommodation generally required until the person with 
the disability requests it. The following optional regulation includes procedures recommended by the 
Equal Employment Opportunity Commission for use when determining what accommodation to make. 

Requests for reasonable accommodation may first be considered informally by the Office Administrator. 
If an accommodation cannot be made at the sites because it would impose undue hardship or because of 
a lack of funds, the Office Administrator shall ask that the request is submitted in writing to the General 
Manager. 

The Office Administrator shall provide the employee or applicant with any assistance he/she may need in 
order to submit this request. The duty to reasonably accommodate an individual with a disability is limited 
to those accommodations which do not impose an undue hardship upon the agency. Undue hardship is 
determined on a case-by-case basis and includes any action that is unduly costly, extensive, substantial, 
disruptive, or that fundamentally alters the nature or operation of the agency. The burden of proving 
undue hardship rests with the agency, and what may be an undue hardship for one agency may not be an 
undue hardship for another, depending on factors such as cost and agency size. Even if cost does pose an 
undue hardship, the disabled person should have the opportunity to pay for the portion of the cost that 
constitutes an undue hardship, or to personally provide the accommodation. 

45



BOARD OF DIRECTORS POLICY MANUAL 

V7.0 Adopted 01.28.2020 
 31  

 

106-00: ELECTION OF OFFICERS 
106-01: RESIGNATION AND VACANCIES 
A Director position vacancy will occur under the following circumstances, or as defined in Government 
Code § 1770, Article 2: 

 Whenever he or she ceases to discharge the duties of his or her office for a period of three 
consecutive months, except when prevented by sickness. 

 Board members who are absent from the Board of Directors meetings for more than three 
consecutive months without the permission of the majority of the Board of Directors, shall forfeit 
their position on the Board. 

 Resignations by Directors shall be in writing, state the effective date and be submitted to the 
President of the Board of Directors and the Board Secretary. In the event the President of the 
Board of Directors resigns, the resignation shall be submitted to the Vice-President of the Board 
of Directors and the Board Secretary. 

If such vacancy occurs, the Board of Directors will take action in accordance with California Government 
Code § 1780. In order to accomplish this in an orderly and consistent manner, when a vacancy of an 
elected Director occurs, the District Board of Directors, after discussion and consideration, shall, when 
deemed appropriate, instruct staff to: 

 Place a public notice advising that a vacancy has occurred in accordance with applicable provisions 
of law; and 

 Said notice shall advise prospective candidates of the steps to take to apply for appointment;  

 The District’s Board of Directors shall establish the closing date for the receipt of applications; and 
applicants shall submit the following, by the date specified in the notice: 

o an appropriate application provided by the District, and 

o a letter of interest, and 

o a resume that includes particular emphasis on the applicant’s knowledge of special 
districts. 

 Applicant(s) shall be interviewed at the next regularly scheduled meeting of the District’s Board 
of Directors following the date of closure for applications. The Board shall make the appointment 
without undue delay but need not act at the same meeting. 

  

46



BOARD OF DIRECTORS POLICY MANUAL 

V7.0 Adopted 01.28.2020 
 32  

 

 

106-02: INCONSISTENT, INCOMPATIBLE AND CONFLICTING 
EMPLOYMENT OR ACTIVITIES 

Pursuant to the provision of the California Government Code § 1126, the Board of Directors of the Aromas 
Water District has determined that it would be inconsistent and incompatible for a Board member to be 
a paid employee of the District. Therefore, based on this decision, a member of the Board of Directors 
shall not be a paid District employee. 

106-03: LEGAL LIABILITIES OF DIRECTORS 
The District shall defend and indemnify Directors from any claim, liability or demand that arises out of a 
Directors' performance of his or her duties or responsibilities as a Director or Officer of the District. 

106-04: ELECTION OF OFFICERS (INTERNAL) 
The election of officers shall be held at the Board of Directors meeting in December of each calendar year. 
Officers will serve for a two-year term. Elections will conform to the applicable provisions of this Policy 
Manual. There shall be the following officers: a president and a vice-president, and three other Board 
members all of whom shall constitute the five members of the District Board of Directors. 

47



BOARD OF DIRECTORS POLICY MANUAL 

V7.0 Adopted 01.28.2020 
 33  

 

107-00: INVESTMENT POLICY 
The District is committed to the establishment of formal policies relative to the prudent investment of the 
District’s unexpended cash. The Board of Directors by resolution shall establish written guidelines for the 
investment of all Aromas Water District funds, or funds in the custody of the District, in a manner that 
conforms to all state and local statutes governing the investment of public funds. Guidelines shall provide 
for an optimal combination of safety, liquidity and yield. The District’s Investment Policy, and any 
amendments thereto, shall be adopted by resolution of the Board of Directors. 

48



BOARD OF DIRECTORS POLICY MANUAL 

V7.0 Adopted 01.28.2020 
34 

REVISION TABLE 
DATE REVISION(S) 

 

December 2020  106-04 Reduced length of term for Vice President and President from two years to one.
 Added this Revision Table

Summer 2020  30-00 Removed necessity for amendments to the Conflict of Interest Code to be adopted
via Resolution of the AWD Board of Directors.

1/28/2020  Revised and updated Policy Manual adopted by AWD Board of Directors

49



Staff Report 
To: Board of Directors 

Re: Item X.B – Consider receiving a progress report on the Marshall Well 
project, and providing direction to Staff 

Date:  February 15, 2022 

Summary / Discussion 
The District’s Strategic Plan identified a number of projects to be completed within its five-year 
horizon. Some of those projects were identified in the 2019 Rate Study and were a basis for 
determining the water rates that were ultimately established.  A non-exhaustive list of those projects 
includes: 1) Ballantree Tank Project, 2) School Road Tank Project, 3) Aimee Meadows Pressure-
Reducing Station, 4) building an Operations Shop, and 5) installing solar power for the 388 Blohm 
Avenue facility. Also, identified for Fiscal Years 2024-2025 to 2026-2027 was a new water source 
(well) project.  That project was moved up by Board decision due to current (and forecasted) 
hydrologic conditions. 

Staff will provide a progress report on the Marshall Well project.  The Ad-Hoc Infrastructure and 
Financing Committee (IFC) met on February 10 to review and discuss Municipal Advisor (financial) 
proposals that were submitted in January of this year.  The IFC, after some discussion, selected NHA 
Advisors to perform financial analysis to determine the best overall financing package for the District.  
Staff subsequently reached out to the selected firm and is awaiting a contract to get the work initiated. 

Staff also had a kickoff meeting with MNS Engineers to begin work on the Preliminary Engineering 
Report for the project.  Staff will keep the Board informed as the project proceeds to allow the Board 
to stay up to date with the project’s progress, so when decision points for the Board arise, the Board 
will have the essential background information to make the best decision. 

Staff Recommendation 
Receive the progress report and provide direction to staff, if any. 

Submitted by: 
Robert Johnson 
General Manager 

50



Staff Report 
To:  Board of Directors 

Re: Item IX.C – Consider adopting a resolution (Resolution #2022-03) certifying a 
Categorical Exemption for the annexation of 27 Cole Road parcels and 6 
parcels on Rocks Road into the Aromas Water District boundary, and providing 
direction to staff 

Date:  February 22, 2022 

Summary / Discussion 
Over the last few years, there have been several requests from parcels along Cole Road to be annexed in 
the Aromas Water District (District) due to lack of water, leading to human health and safety issues for the 
residents.  The District has annexed six parcels along Cole Road in singular efforts, and due to those efforts, 
the District Board of Directors (BOD) directed staff to reach out to Cole Road residents whose parcels were 
directly along Cole Road, where a District water main resides.  Staff reached out to the residents and held 
a public meeting to answer any questions they may have.  The result of the outreach was positive, so staff 
moved forward with an annexation effort along Cole Road.   

Around the same time, some residents along Rocks Road were experiencing similar issues.  Staff worked 
with those residents to include them in the annexation effort, since an annexation can take up to 14 months 
to complete.  The District BOD approved moving forward with the annexation of both the 27 parcels on 
Cole Road and the 6 parcels on Rocks Road. 

The annexation request was then taken to Pajaro Valley Water Management Agency (PVWMA) on January 
19, 2022.  The PVWMA BOD would need to approve an exemption to their non-exportation ordinance to 
allow this annexation to move forward.  Approval was given at that meeting. 

Staff are now working on the Annexation application to the San Benito County Local Area Foundation 
Commission (SBC LAFCo).  This application has about 10 important items that need to be completed for 
the application to be considered; one of these items is inclusion of the appropriate environmental 
documentation. Staff has determined that a Categorical Exemption (CE) under the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA) is the appropriate level of environmental documentation.  Basically, a CE is an analysis 
tool to determine if a project has or does not have a significant effect on the environment in the “project 
area”.  Since the District is already in a position to provide water to these parcels, there is no significant 
effect on the environment surrounding the parcels as the main line is already installed and not all of the 
parcels will immediately require connection to the District’s main line. 

Once a completed application gets to SBC LAFCo, there is a minimum two-month wait before the item will 
make it on their agenda.  

Staff Recommendation 
Receive the update report; Certify the Categorical Exemption; and Adopt the Resolution to Certify the 
Categorical Exemption. 
 
Submitted by: 
Robert Johnson, General Manager 

51



RESOLUTION 2022-03 

A RESOLUTION OF  
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE AROMAS WATER DISTRICT  

FINDING THAT A PROJECT IS CATEGORICALLY EXEMPT  
UNDER THE CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT 

The Aromas Water District has made the following findings: 

WHEREAS the annexation for service for a total of 33 parcels along Cole Road and Rocks 
Road (San Benito County) is a small utility extension to single-family residences, and  

WHEREAS the California Environmental Quality Act provides a Categorical Exemption 
for annexations of single-family dwellings for provision of utilities pursuant to Section 
15319 of the California Code of Regulations Guidelines for Implementation of the 
California Environmental Quality Act.  

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Aromas Water District Board of 
Directors hereby resolves, and order as follows: 

that the annexation of San Benito Parcel No.s listed in Exhibit A, to the Aromas Water 
District are Categorically Exempt under Section 15319 of the California Code of 
Regulations from the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Aromas Water District Board of Directors, Aromas, 
Monterey and San Benito Counties, California, at a Regular meeting duly held on this 22nd
day of February, 2022 by the following vote: 

AYES:  

NOES: 

ABSTAIN: 

ABSENT: 

APPROVE:  

_______________________________ 
James Leap, Board President 

ATTEST:  

____________________________ 
Board Secretary, Louise Coombes 

52



CATEGORICAL EXEMPTION 
 
Notice of Exemption Appendix 

________________________________________ 
 
TO: County Clerk 
 County of San Benito 
 440 Fifth Street 
 Hollister, CA 95023 
 

Project Title:  Annexation of 33 parcels (APNs listed in Exhibit A) into the Aromas Water 
District 

 
Project Location: Cole Road and Rocks Road 
 
Project Location City & County:  Aromas, San Benito County 
 
Description of Nature, Purpose, and Beneficiaries of Project: The purpose of the 
proposed action is to annex these existing residential parcels into the Aromas Water District 
to provide residential water service in place of well water for the property owners. 
 
Name of Public Agency Approving Project: San Benito County Local Agency Formation 
Commission 
 
Name of Person or Agency Carrying Out Project: Aromas Water District 
 
Exempt Status: (Check One) 
        Ministerial (Sec21080(b)(1); 15268); 
        Declared Emergency 
        Emergency Project 
   X  Categorical Exemption: Sections 15303(d), and 15319 
        Statutory Exemptions: State code number 
        Other: The activity is not a project subject to CEQA 
 
Reason Why Project is Exempt: The area where this project is located has been previously 
disturbed by rural residential construction. This annexation would provide municipal water to 
existing residences experiencing poor water quality and inadequate water quantity on these 
parcels.  There are no plans to subdivide any parcels. 
 
Lead Agency Contact Person: Robert Johnson, General Manager, Aromas Water District 
(831) 726-5071 
 
 
Signature: __________________________Date: __________________________ 

 

53



Exhibit A 

Non-Annexed Parcels Adjacent to Cole Main Line Along Cole Road 

Number APN Assessed Acreage 
1 011-160-002 50.64 
2 011-160-011 4.76 
3 011-160-012 24.52 
4 011-160-017 29.62 
5 011-160-051 5.1 
6 011-160-052 15.85 
7 011-160-053 5.44 
8 011-160-057 4.83 
9 011-160-059 4.85 

10 011-160-060 4.77 
11 011-160-066 4.97 
12 011-160-067 4.62 
13 011-220-006 3.4 
14 011-220-008 5.27 
15 011-220-018 5.36 
16 011-220-019 1.86 
17 011-220-020 3.92 
18 011-220-021 3.335 
19 011-220-022 4.72 
20 011-260-007 8.488 
21 011-260-011 5.06 
22 011-260-012 5.07 
23 011-260-022 5.05 
24 011-260-028 5.00 
25 011-280-007 0.37 
26 011-280-013 5.8 
27 011-280-021 5 

 Total Acreage: 227.67 

Non-Annexed Parcels Adjacent to Cole Main Line Along Rocks Road 

Number APN Assessed Acreage 
1 011- 300-010 0.72 
2 011-300-009 4.27 
3 011-300-015 5.00 
4 011-300-016 8.59 
5 012-140-014 5.00 
6 012-140-015 5.00 
 Total Acreage: 28.58 

 

 

54



Jan 31, 22 Jan 31, 21

ASSETS
Current Assets

Checking/Savings
UB Checking 77,106.95 133,333.09
UB Bk Money Market xxxx7853 1,022,337.06 512,570.05
LAIF-State of Ca xx-05 837,180.43 834,739.55
Petty Cash 100.00 100.00
Assessment District Banks

OAWA US Bank 102 Reserve 38,201.16 0.00
OAWA Union Bank Checking 7741 47,598.67 57,555.75
OAWA Union Bank 101 Redemption 0.00 0.18
OAWA Union Bank 102 Reserve 0.00 35,565.59
Oakridge Union Checking 5587 427,681.51 409,672.22

Total Assessment District Banks 513,481.34 502,793.74

Total Checking/Savings 2,450,205.78 1,983,536.43

Other Current Assets
ACWA Deposit 0.00 2,080.80
1292 · Accounts Rec - USDA Loan 2,040,446.37 2,095,834.27
1291 · Accounts Rec - Orchard Acres 289,594.03 311,692.98
Prepaid Insurance 14,198.64 16,108.90
128 · Inventory 63,177.31 49,921.56
1200.1 · Accounts Receivable--UBMax 101,962.16 129,411.65
1201.9 · Less Allowance for doubtful ... -500.00 -500.00

Total Other Current Assets 2,508,878.51 2,604,550.16

Total Current Assets 4,959,084.29 4,588,086.59

Fixed Assets
1900 · Water System 12,086,979.94 11,994,725.80
1915 · Office Building & Improvements 398,261.43 398,261.43
1970 · Office Equipment & Fixtures 93,467.05 93,467.05
1980 · District Vehicles 117,577.39 117,577.39
1990 · Land and Easements 331,195.78 331,195.78
1995 · Idle Assets 43,400.00 43,400.00
1998 · Less Accum Depr Idle Assets -42,400.00 -42,400.00
1999 · Less Accumuated Depreciation -7,195,962.75 -6,641,692.75

Total Fixed Assets 5,832,518.84 6,294,534.70

Other Assets
Deferred Outflow of Resources 149,120.00 140,939.00

Total Other Assets 149,120.00 140,939.00

TOTAL ASSETS 10,940,723.13 11,023,560.29

9:09 AM Aromas Water District
02/17/22 Balance Sheet Prev Year Comparison
Accrual Basis As of January 31, 2022

55



Jan 31, 22 Jan 31, 21

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable

2000 · Accounts Payable 36,117.46 3,825.66

Total Accounts Payable 36,117.46 3,825.66

Credit Cards
First Bankcard - S Smith #0239 1,798.01 2,137.16
First Bankcard - E Giron #1086 143.97 523.55
First Bankcard -R.Johnson #9031 1,170.47 66.39
First Bankcard-L Coombes #3294 38.21 74.97
First Bankcard - D DeAlba #2486 3,672.81 181.73
Valero Fleet 247.18 321.88

Total Credit Cards 7,070.65 3,305.68

Other Current Liabilities
Accrued Sick Payable 3,177.04 0.00
Accrued Wages Payable 19,565.97 0.00
Current Portion City National 72,912.25 59,661.05
2100 · Payroll Liabilities 481.82 671.18
Deferred Inflows- Actuarial 4,337.00 10,090.00
CUSTOMER DEPOSITS

Connection Deposits Payable 2,000.00 2,000.00
Hydrant Meter Deposit 800.00 800.00

Total CUSTOMER DEPOSITS 2,800.00 2,800.00

Accrued Vacation Payable 34,129.54 27,815.70
Interest Payable 44,306.83 20,153.44
PVWMA Payable 9,940.14 10,730.10

Total Other Current Liabilities 191,650.59 131,921.47

Total Current Liabilities 234,838.70 139,052.81

Long Term Liabilities
2392 · Long-term Debt - USDA (Oakr... 2,432,999.90 2,469,999.90
2391 · Long-term Debt - Orchard Acres 370,000.00 380,000.00
GASB 68 Pension Liability 608,060.00 577,103.00
City National Bank 750,538.78 865,611.94

Total Long Term Liabilities 4,161,598.68 4,292,714.84

Total Liabilities 4,396,437.38 4,431,767.65

Equity
Investment in Capital Assets 6,420,006.53 6,420,006.53
Unrestricted Net Assets 2,751,025.55 2,687,889.75
Allocation of Net Assets -2,637,574.59 -2,637,574.59
Net Income 10,828.26 121,470.95

Total Equity 6,544,285.75 6,591,792.64

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 10,940,723.13 11,023,560.29

9:09 AM Aromas Water District
02/17/22 Balance Sheet Prev Year Comparison
Accrual Basis As of January 31, 2022

56



Jan 22 Budget Jul '21 - Jan 22 YTD Budget Annual Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

303 · Water Revenue 83,093.55 95,500.00 830,179.66 866,500.00 1,495,000.00
307 · Bulk Water 891.34 660.00 8,249.03 4,620.00 8,000.00
302 · Connection 0.00 0.00 43,920.00 14,460.00 30,800.00
301 · Taxes Rcvd - AWD

3090 · Oakridge / OAWA  Assessme... 0.00 0.00 102,838.93 97,000.00 195,000.00
301 · Taxes Rcvd - AWD - Other 0.00 0.00 47,969.08 42,000.00 76,000.00

Total 301 · Taxes Rcvd - AWD 0.00 0.00 150,808.01 139,000.00 271,000.00

304 · Other Office Income & Reimburse 0.00 125.00 0.25 875.00 1,500.00
306 · Interest 205.48 400.00 1,408.59 2,800.00 4,800.00
312 · Grant Revenue 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,500.00 1,500.00

Total Income 84,190.37 96,685.00 1,034,565.54 1,029,755.00 1,812,600.00

Gross Profit 84,190.37 96,685.00 1,034,565.54 1,029,755.00 1,812,600.00

Expense
Operations

403 · Fuel 1,327.32 1,250.00 7,610.19 8,750.00 15,000.00
404 · Truck Maint 0.00 625.00 5,419.11 4,375.00 7,500.00
431 · System Repair & Maint 9,375.94 5,830.00 51,057.18 40,810.00 70,000.00
463 · Water Analysis 352.00 540.00 2,717.00 3,780.00 6,500.00
464 · Water Treatment 768.42 1,200.00 13,129.33 11,300.00 20,000.00
468 · Tools 1,472.34 625.00 1,472.34 4,375.00 7,500.00
470 · Public Outreach / Annexation 357.00 400.00 3,574.67 2,800.00 30,000.00

Total Operations 13,653.02 10,470.00 84,979.82 76,190.00 156,500.00

Power
449.75 · 388 Blohm, # C 40.88 33.00 193.65 231.00 400.00
449.5 · 388 Blohm, A & B Office 194.30 200.00 762.27 1,010.00 1,700.00
461.5 · RLS Tank Booster 9.85 12.50 66.35 87.50 150.00
447 · Leo Ln Booster 53.40 50.00 422.93 350.00 600.00
448 · Aimee Mdws Well 9.53 12.50 64.59 87.50 150.00
451 · Marshall Corp Yard 37.17 41.00 251.03 287.00 500.00
452 · Rea Booster @ Seely 84.50 52.00 369.80 364.00 625.00
454 · Carr Booster 397.78 575.00 3,618.74 4,025.00 6,900.00
458 · Pleasant Acres Well 98.25 330.00 781.15 2,310.00 4,000.00
459 · Seely Booster @ Carpenteria 921.47 41.00 5,125.63 287.00 500.00
460 · San Juan Well 3,720.66 3,500.00 36,354.65 38,100.00 63,000.00
461 · Cole Tank 14.25 16.00 99.41 112.00 200.00
462 · Rea Tank 14.55 16.00 100.17 112.00 200.00
465 - Lwr Oakridge Boost 86.08 125.00 698.85 875.00 1,500.00
465.5 - Upper Oakridge Booster 0.00 0.00 300.00 350.00 700.00
466 · Pine Tree Tank 14.33 16.00 92.88 112.00 200.00

Total Power 5,697.00 5,020.00 49,302.10 48,700.00 81,325.00

Payroll
Covid Sick Supp. 0.00 302.96
Gross 28,792.09 35,414.00 212,853.48 247,898.00 424,969.00
Comp FICA 1,778.58 2,195.00 12,128.04 15,365.00 26,348.00
Comp MCARE 419.71 513.50 3,108.08 3,594.50 6,162.00
Comp SUI 427.79 182.00 748.94 1,274.00 2,188.00

Total Payroll 31,418.17 38,304.50 229,141.50 268,131.50 459,667.00

Employee / Labor  Costs
407 · Outside Services 1,189.50 500.00 5,136.88 3,500.00 6,000.00
408 · Uniform Allowance 300.00 330.00 521.00 2,310.00 4,000.00
409 · Workers Comp 408.34 1,057.00 3,442.72 7,399.00 12,691.00
410 · Health Ins 5,803.08 5,948.00 48,094.92 41,636.00 71,387.00
474 · Education 875.00 625.00 4,623.53 4,375.00 7,500.00
477 · Retirement 2,548.28 2,433.00 73,409.45 74,281.00 86,446.00

Total Employee / Labor  Costs 11,124.20 10,893.00 135,228.50 133,501.00 188,024.00

9:14 AM Aromas Water District

02/17/22 Profit & Loss Budget Performance
Accrual Basis January 2022

57



Jan 22 Budget Jul '21 - Jan 22 YTD Budget Annual Budget

Office
440 · Misc Exp 571.20 330.00 2,536.48 2,310.00 4,000.00
444 · Postage 262.28 330.00 2,272.97 2,310.00 4,000.00
445 · Office Supplies 100.29 330.00 1,582.52 2,310.00 4,000.00
446 · Office Eqpmt and Maint 133.23 150.00 4,634.07 2,960.00 15,000.00

Total Office 1,067.00 1,140.00 11,026.04 9,890.00 27,000.00

Communications
455 · Phone, Off 471.54 350.00 3,387.03 2,450.00 4,200.00
456 · Telemetry 779.03 677.00 5,336.79 4,739.00 8,124.00
457 · Answ Serv/Cellular Phone 307.85 330.00 2,292.20 2,310.00 4,000.00

Total Communications 1,558.42 1,357.00 11,016.02 9,499.00 16,324.00

Administrative & General
4591 · Admin Fee (Bond Admin NBS) 0.00 0.00 1,900.16 2,600.00 5,200.00
4590 · Bond Interest Exp - Assess D... 0.00 0.00 60,429.99 64,000.00 128,000.00
417 · Capital Loan Interest 0.00 0.00 12,957.76 13,000.00 26,000.00
467 - Depreciation Reserve 53,503.00 53,503.00 374,521.00 374,521.00 642,035.00
406 · Liability Ins 1,702.06 1,660.00 11,856.20 11,620.00 20,000.00
420 · Legal Fees 1,400.00 1,400.00 9,800.00 9,800.00 17,000.00
422 · Bank Charges 113.12 158.00 889.30 1,106.00 1,900.00
423 · Litigation Contingency 0.00 830.00 0.00 5,810.00 10,000.00
425 · Audit 625.00 1,093.00 8,825.00 7,651.00 13,125.00
471 · Bad Debts 0.00 40.00 0.00 280.00 500.00
473 · Memberships 8,208.09 7,590.00 21,863.89 19,790.00 20,000.00

Total Administrative & General 65,551.27 66,274.00 503,043.30 510,178.00 883,760.00

Total Expense 130,069.08 133,458.50 1,023,737.28 1,056,089.50 1,812,600.00

Net Ordinary Income -45,878.71 -36,773.50 10,828.26 -26,334.50 0.00

Net Income -45,878.71 -36,773.50 10,828.26 -26,334.50 0.00

9:14 AM Aromas Water District

02/17/22 Profit & Loss Budget Performance
Accrual Basis January 2022

58



Date Num Name Amount

UB Checking
01/26/2022 E-pay Employment Development Dept -682.71
01/26/2022 E-pay United States Treasury (EFTPS) -3,920.50
01/27/2022 EFT QuickBooks Payroll Service -6,152.56
01/28/2022 DD1765 Bowman (P), Naomi 0.00
01/28/2022 DD1766 Coombes (P), Louise P 0.00
01/28/2022 18582 DeAlba (P), David -2,765.42
01/28/2022 DD1767 Giron (P), Ester 0.00
01/28/2022 DD1768 Johnson (P), Robert L 0.00
01/28/2022 18583 Smith (P), Shaun -1,452.66
01/28/2022 EFT CalPERS -2,502.28
01/28/2022 EFT CalPERS -810.82
01/31/2022 Pd Online P G & E -4,331.84
01/31/2022 Pd Online Valero Fleet -397.20
01/31/2022 Pd Online Verizon Wireless -157.85
01/31/2022 EFT Bank Service Fees -113.12
02/01/2022 18584 A Tool Shed Rentals -465.08
02/01/2022 18585 Allterra Solar -2,000.00
02/01/2022 18586 Armer Grading & Paving -1,120.00
02/01/2022 18587 CALNET3 -703.59
02/01/2022 18588 Mid Valley Supply -768.42
02/01/2022 18589 MNS Engineers Inc. -1,742.50
02/01/2022 18590 Rob Johnson -50.00
02/01/2022 18591 San Benito County Clerk -50.00
02/01/2022 18592 Shaun Smith -22.00
02/01/2022 18593 United Way serving San Benito County -32.00
02/01/2022 18594 XIO, INC. -474.00
02/01/2022 18595 XIO, INC. -7,493.72
02/02/2022 Pd Online First Bankcard -1,585.36
02/04/2022 18596 USPO -227.80
02/07/2022 Pd Online First Bankcard -5,831.60
02/09/2022 E-pay Employment Development Dept -708.73
02/09/2022 E-pay United States Treasury (EFTPS) -4,161.74
02/10/2022 EFT QuickBooks Payroll Service -6,995.10
02/11/2022 DD1770 Coombes (P), Louise P 0.00
02/11/2022 18597 DeAlba (P), David -2,887.53
02/11/2022 DD1769 Bowman (P), Naomi 0.00
02/11/2022 DD1771 Giron (P), Ester 0.00
02/11/2022 DD1772 Johnson (P), Robert L 0.00
02/11/2022 18598 Smith (P), Shaun -1,384.67
02/11/2022 18599 Dutra (P), Marcus -234.52
02/11/2022 18600 Holman (P), Wayne R -234.52
02/11/2022 DD1773 Leap (P), James E 0.00
02/11/2022 DD1774 Morris (P), Vicki 0.00
02/11/2022 DD1775 Smith (P), Richard 0.00
02/11/2022 EFT CalPERS -2,529.14
02/11/2022 EFT CalPERS -825.27
02/14/2022 Pd Online P G & E -1,166.50
02/14/2022 18601 ACE Hardware Prunedale -270.39
02/14/2022 18602 ACWA JPIA, Emp. Ben. Prog. -5,651.16
02/14/2022 18603 Agee Electric, Inc. -458.85
02/14/2022 18604 Aromas Water District (Petty Cash) -307.00

Aromas Water District

02/17/22 Monthly Expenditures
January 19 through February 16, 2022

59



Date Num Name Amount

02/14/2022 18605 Brigantino Irrigation -460.24
02/14/2022 18606 Charter Communications - Spectrum -72.98
02/14/2022 18607 CSSC -100.00
02/14/2022 18608 Fedak & Brown LLP -625.00
02/14/2022 18609 Federico's Embroidery -218.28
02/14/2022 18610 PVWMA -19,414.32
02/14/2022 18611 R & B Company -1,419.04
02/14/2022 18612 Recology San Benito County -58.08
02/14/2022 18613 Robert E. Bosso -1,400.00
02/14/2022 18614 Streamline -100.00
02/14/2022 18615 USA BlueBook -4,401.92
02/14/2022 18616 Xerox Corp -16.75
02/14/2022 NSF Bill Adjustment Report -2,371.86

Total UB Checking -104,326.62

TOTAL -104,326.62

Aromas Water District

02/17/22 Monthly Expenditures
January 19 through February 16, 2022

60




